

Ingrid Auer & Gerd Schwank

HOW ANGELS WORK

Experiences and Success Stories with Angel Symbols, Angel Essences and Angel Oils

ekonja[®]

Ingrid Auer & Gerd Schwank

HOW ANGELS WORK

Successes and experiences with the Angel Symbols, Angel Essences and Angel Oils

The recommendations and methods, portrayed in this book, are explained to the best of my knowledge. Therefore, the author and the publisher will not be responsible, in any circumstances, for any disadvantages which could result from the use of the recommendations and methods, given in this book.

This book contains information and experiences with energetic and spiritual tools from the spiritual world. The methods and means described, are not directly associated with conventional knowledge and approaches, and do not intend to represent themselves as such. They are no substitute for medicines, medical or psychotherapeutic treatment. With regard to the contents of this book, the publisher and the author give no direct or indirect quarantee.

© 2012 by LICHTPUNKT & EKONJA-VERLAG Ingrid Auer GmbH Wiener Straße 49, A-3300 Amstetten, Austria (Europe) www.ingridauer.us www.international.ingridauer.com

www.facebook.com/IngridAuerforWomen

The entire work is protected by copyright. Any form of non-authorised use is unapproved. This also applies to distribution by film, radio, television, photo mechanical representation, sound carrier of any type, electronic media, as well as reprints and translations.

Translated from German by Anna Maria Wagner Cover, book design and layout: Brigitte Sturl and Elisabeth Tejral

With grateful thanks to the following:

- all our interviewees for their willingness to talk openly and freely about their experiences with the tools from the angelic world
- all those people who spontaneously e-mailed us their details of working with Angel Symbols, Angel Essences and Angel Oils
- all the angels, archangels and masters, especially to Ekonja with his angel-group for spiritual guidance and company

Contents

Foreword	8	
At the dentist's with angels	12	
Angels support children	19	
With angels in the kindergarten	21	
Angels in the family	26	
With angels through pregnancy	29	
Angels and kinesiology	32	
When energies become visible	37	
Angels on the farm	40	
Getting through everyday school life more easily	44	
Angels by a doctor's side	50	
Reaching the goal with gentle power		
Angels need not be proved	57	
Nursing with angelic help		
Angels in all situations in life		
With a lot of feeling and angelic power		

Angels do wonderful things	76
Angel messages on the internet	81
Physiotherapy and angel energies	84
Angels love lightness	88
From a natural doctor's practice	93
Letters from near and far	100
A final thought	117
Glossary	122
About the authors	127
Contact	128

Foreword

Most people react cautiously, with a good deal of scepticism, some maybe even with absolute rejection, when they hear about angel energies for the first time. Hardly any concrete ideas can be conceived in connection with this term, unless faint memories of stories about quardian angels from childhood.

Even I had great doubts when I heard that Ingrid Auer had gone a step further, after kinisiology, Bach flowers and aura soma, supposedly receiving direct instructions from the angelic world. Her confident appearance, absolute determination and her firm trust impressed me in a way that, after some hesitation, led me to encourage her to make a full start with her new aim in life.

With astonishment I witnessed her first successes, which were based on unlimited commitment, at close hand. I would probably still look at Ingrid's career with suspicion, if I had not experienced a very personal, unbelievable and wonderful approach to the spiritual world through a tragic experience. The connection with souls and angels has filled me with pleasure and deep gratitude ever since then. It has opened me for sensations beyond sober understanding. In the meantime I have learned to distinguish emotions from spiritual experiences.

Ingrid Auer is obliged to approach as many people as possible with the tools from the angelic world which have been transmitted to her: through talks, seminars, books and with the help of energy practitioners, doctors and private users, who are already convinced of the effects of symbols, oils and essences. It is great to witness

her lifework steadily and inexorably growing. Almost every day, new and surprising messages of success arrive. Yet we are only at the beginning: the potential of the angel energies seems to be unlimited.

The vast amount of information received from users, so far, made me start with a collection of progress reports. Furthermore, I held twenty personal interviews which are an essential part of the book. It seems important to me that these amazing results are made accessible to a wide readership.

Alternative physicians, energy practitioners and therapists who have already made positive experiences with their clients, will find confirmation of their impressions, and new impulses from colleagues.

All the private users, applying angel energies for themselves and their families, will find new fields of application and valuable tips for using the symbols, oils and essences in everyday life.

Last, but not least, I would like to call upon all those readers who are still trapped in their brains, to give vent to their emotions and feelings. In this book you will find genuine and proven results concerning the effects of subtle energies that can be attributed to the angelic world.

However, I would like to warn of ambiguous assessments of angel energies. I think it would be a mistake to become euphoric and

expect sheer magical powers from the tools of the angelic world, only because we wonder why there are no reasonable explanations for this sort of success. So far, we only know that they work, but not how and why. This is what we ought to accept, first of all. We should trust that through loving attention from the angelic world, we have been receiving precious presents.

I am convinced that all the effects described in this book, are caused by the same source. A power which some people cannot perceive, some are able to feel as warmth, cold, energy flows, light and so on. It is a universal power which I would like to call God's love, due to the lack of a more appropriate term. Everything that has been achieved in knowledge and skill, especially in medicine, is certainly in accord with creation.

It is a principle of life that people search, investigate, find and realize. Therefore all the well-known ways and means of conventional or alternative medicine and scientific progresses are important and valuable. If and how they can be complemented by angel energies, the future will tell. One thing seems to be obvious: these special energies do not directly affect the physical body or the intellect, but the subtle area and beyond. They can be used preventively before disorders and illnesses manifest. Once illnesses have materialized, they can be eased or completely "healed", by tracing back the mental, subtle reasons. We can see, in concrete examples, that angel energies can help when conventional treatments have come close to their limits.

For reasons of discretion, I have only given my interviewees' first names and first letters of their surnames. Nevertheless, they assure the authenticity of their information. Some of them agreed to be available for personal talks and correspondence. You find a list of their names and addresses attached.

And, dear reader, if you close the book after reading all the reports and feel somehow exhausted but impressed, just remember: This is only the beginning of our experiences and knowledge. Everything has just started. Bear in mind that most lies ahead of us. I find this exciting and promising. The angelic world wants us to be curious and hungry for knowledge, that we try out their tools in a playful way and finally explore new things.

I wish, from the bottom of my heart, that you can accept the tools from the angelic world with gratitude and trust.

Gerd Schwank

At the dentist's with angels

Hans-Peter B., born 1964, lives near Krefeld in Germany and works as a self-employed dentist. After his medical studies, he extended his knowledge with trainings in acupuncture, TCM (traditional Chinese medicine), homeopathy, blossom therapy and radionics. He says radionics is about diagnosing and treating the etheric body, the energy body.

Hans-Peter made contact with the angel energies through a healing practitioner who worked as an angel medium and angel therapist. She had been sending him patients to analyze their interference fields in connection with teeth and their interaction with the body. Without really knowing who she was and what her "appearance" would mean to him, he treated patients who she sent to him. One day she came to the surgery herself, beginning the conversation by telling Hans-Peter about his physical and mental symptoms, old injuries and their backgrounds. He was eagerly listening, although there should have been opposite roles.

Within the next three years some sort of cooperation developed between them both which he today describes as a path of knowledge and the opening of this certain channel which we all have. All this had a great effect on the treatments in his surgery, on his own views, and ways of working. It lead to completely new energy and a new professional understanding. Hans-Peter emphasizes the importance of the interaction of certain teeth and the corresponding organs and emotions. He is absolutely convinced that teeth reflect the current state of the soul, but also the topic of the ongoing changes in a person's life.

In 2006 Hans-Peter "accidentally" heard about the first Angel Congress in Hamburg. Full of curiosity he went to Hamburg, without knowing what was waiting for him. There he found himself among more than 1000 women, but not more than 100 men. In front of the conference hall a strong headache started to torture him. But already in the entrance hall (where incense was burnt) his pains became less. What would he hear about angels in there?

One stand in particular, caught his attention. It was Ingrid Auer's where he spontaneously bought the symbols and essences of a few Archangels and other Angels. He listened to all the talks. During Ingrid Auer's, he felt a continuous stream of warm waves through his body. Lots of thoughts and ideas were going through his mind. Which of the things he had just heard could he use in his surgery? A fantastic feeling took hold of him.

He tried to get hold of books, essences and symbols at Ingrid Auer's stand, but it was so crowded that he had no chance to get through. So the next Monday he made an order at Lichtpunkt Germany. He did not really know how he would use the different things, so he took part in an introductory course in Germany, where he received his first and basic knowledge.

Shortly after the congress in Hamburg, Hans-Peter flew to Madeira to attend a seminar on acupuncture which was also touching on the border areas of energetic medicine. Much to his surprise he met a few light workers, among others a clairvoyant doctor who could see people's auras. During the seminar he told some of his colleagues about his angelic tools. Some sort of mini-angel-workshop developed which crossed the borders of conventional medicine. Some doctors were really touched by the angels and their symbols.

After Hans-Peter had returned home, he found out more and more about the tools from the angelic world. He attended further courses at Lichtpunkt Germany and made greater use of his new knowledge in his surgery. He experienced more and more amazing successes and insights. His whole understanding of energetics had changed. Alleged borders were simply crossed by means of the angelic tools.

Hans-Peter is as sensitive a dentist as you could ever wish for. He is concerned to take away people's fears of the dentist. "Fear blocks the heart and Archangel Chamuel stands for love", Hans-Peter thinks. This is why Hans-Peter uses the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Chamuel" before every treatment, to deal with and reduce fears. A suitable method which he keeps using successfully.

We all know: not only adults, but also children, are often afraid of going to the dentist. There can be strong emotions and even aggression. One day Hans-Peter heard a child screaming in the waiting room. As it would not stop, he interrupted his treatment. On his way out he took the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Chamuel" with him. He went over to the little angry girl, said hello, and sprayed the essence into the child's aura. Within a few minutes the noise got less. Next time he opened the door to the waiting room, he saw the girl hug her mother. And he also noticed the assistants being extremely friendly to the patients waiting.

Another example: There was a lady with her 9-year-old daughter who had particularly sensitive bottom front teeth. A laser acupuncture had been arranged. During the treatment the mother asked Hans-Peter if he could help her daughter to stop sucking her thumb. For some time she had been doing this again. He was quite surprised about this regressive behaviour, but remembered it might have to do with a closed heart-chakra. He got the Angel

Aura Essence "Archangel Chamuel" and sprayed a little bit in the room. After some days the mother came back into the surgery and wanted to know the name of this "spray". Her child had become so good and balanced, did not suck her thumb any more, so that she wanted to order the essence. The mother was very surprised and pleased by the quick and positive effect of the Angel Aura Essence

One day, a 30-year-old woman, a pain patient, came to the surgery. She had not been at the dentist's for 13 years. Some teeth were already missing, many were destroyed by caries and now a cuspid festered. She was terribly afraid of the root treatment which was necessary. Hans-Peter said some soothing words to her and took the proven Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Chamuel" and "Energetic Cleansing". The woman calmed down and went through the treatment quite relaxed. When she said goodbye, she added to Hans-Peter, "I have never been so relaxed at a dentist's". Unusual words for Hans-Peter after such treatment.

One day a Reiki-master came to Hans-Peter's surgery. During the anamnesis talk she mentioned her allergy to plastic. As she did not want a plastic beaker to rinse her mouth, they gave her a glass. Hans-Peter was curious and wanted to do the kinesiology muscle test. It showed that only touching plastic weakened her muscle energy. Another test confirmed this problem.

After the dental treatment Hans-Peter asked the woman to take the plastic beaker again to repeat the muscle test. Much to her surprise the muscles did not show any allergy any more. Also Hans-Peter's "energetic allergy tests" did not show any negative reactions. What had happened?

During the treatment Hans-Peter formed an angel-protection-circle with the Angel Combi Symbols no. 10 "Nithael". He put the beaker into the circle so that the woman could not see it. She could see that she was not allergic to plastic any more.

Hans-Peter recommended her the Angel Combi Oil no. 10 for the total and permanent solution of her allergy patterns. He tested how many drops she should put where on her body at home. The patient applied the oil for some time and since then the allergy to plastic has not been found any more energetically. She agrees with plastic again without any problems. Hans-Peter finds it essential to talk about unconscious emotional patterns so that the solution can also take place in the subconscious mind. Hans-Peter noticed that often only reading out the background topics from the book of angel symbols was enough to solve the problem.

One day a patient came whose dentures did not fit any more. A plastic lining was made and in the afternoon the dentures were fitted in again. Next day the patient had swellings in her face, and pains in the jaw area. Immediately the dentures were tested for allergies which proved the suspicion: With the help of "Radionik" therapy Hans-Peter removed the vibrations of the dentures and treated the lady with the Angel Combi Oil no. 10 "Nithael". As soon as the dentures were put in again, the patient felt an immediate positive change. Within three days the lady was without pain. The tests did not show any more reactions to plastic.

One day, a colleague's dental assistant visited Hans-Peter in his surgery. Her problem was a hyper-sensitivity to the filling material of her teeth. Hans- Peter also noticed a general lack of energy. She reacted to all the materials with differing intensities. She particularly reacted to standard dental cement which is used in a lot of dental surgeries. Hans-Peter decided to put this material in a protection circle with the seven Angel Combi Symbols no. 10 "Nithael" as he had already had successful experiences with this. After ten minutes the allergic symptoms had disappeared. Hans-Peter recommended using the Angel Combi Oil no. 10 for some weeks. Hans-Peter also told us that he has already helped 30 to 40 patients with the same treatment.

Hans-Peter remembers very clearly the case of a patient with strong reactions of the central nervous system, the brain, and various allergies caused by several serious operations. After some root treatments, the lady had crowns fitted with a filling material she was allergic to. The patient showed energetic tensions, general lack of drive, forgetfulness, faintness and was extremely restricted in her everyday activities. Hans-Peter realized that quick help was needed. With the help of a polarizing filter on top of the teeth and the corresponding organs, he could find a disorder in the patient's energetic field. A blocking field was disturbing several organs. Hans-Peter tried to solve the blockage by putting the Angel Essence "Archangel Raphael" on the patient's palms. A few drops of the Angel Essence sorted out old energetic blockages on the lady's teeth and organs. The patient could be stabilized and further therapy steps could be made, as the patient was also ready inside to solve her blockages.

Amongst his friends Hans-Peter had an interesting case for the application of the angel energies. A friend asked him for Bach Flowers for her two-and-a-half year old niece who had a disturbed relationship to her grandmother. The girl literally fled from every hug or contact with the grandmother. Hans-Peter had the idea that the grandmother's heart energy could be blocked which the girl might feel. He recommended the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Chamuel" which his friend had already "accidentally" bought for herself a few days ago.

A few days later she rang Hans-Peter to tell him what had happened. The Angel Aura Essence had been used in the flat several times before the grandmother and her granddaughter met. Much to the surprise of the people present, for the first time, the girl happily shouted "Granny" and had a big hug. Everybody was extremely happy about this, especially the grandmother. Everybody was

surprised about the unexpected affection, which was the start of a loving grandmother-granddaughter relationship. In the meantime, the grandmother's whole attitude to life has changed. She seems more cheerful, positive, and more open than before.

A current and interesting example comes from a boy who came to Hans-Peter's surgery with his mother. He often forgot to use his brace. Hans-Peter asked for the brace, put it close to a spot on his forehead which made the boy twitch his eyes. He tried to escape with his head and said it was an unpleasant feeling. This was a clear sign for Hans-Peter that there was some allergy. The boy unconsciously forgot to take the brace because it did not do him any good.

With the help of a polarizing filter he could measure a strong blockage in the energetic field of the immune system. Hans-Peter applied the Angel Aura Essence no. 10 "Nithael" and put the brace into an Angel Symbol-Circle with the Combi-Symbols no. 10. The boy reacted less, but the polarization measurement showed some remaining allergy. There must have been a reason for the allergy not to disappear completely. Hans-Peter tested some more Angel Combi Symbols for the boy and his blockages. After their use the boy's energetic field was okay. The clearing process is going on at the moment.

Hans-Peter is very grateful for the angels' help and sees their support as a loving act of endless care. He would never want to miss the Angel Symbols, Essences and Oils neither in his work, nor in his private life.

Angels support children

Maria L., born in 1973, is a social worker and special needs teacher from Vienna. With passion and love for children she has been working for more than ten years in the integration area. Together with her colleagues she is responsible for children aged between six and fourteen. It is her aim to increase the understanding, tolerance and integration between "healthy" and "handicapped" children. She wants to make the children as personally independent as possible. This requires a great deal of individual support measures, personal commitment, empathy and also a special ability to communicate.

As a religious and spiritually open woman she had already developed a great interest in angels in her childhood. Through a friend she found personal contact to Ingrid Auer and her tools from the angelic world. The Angel Symbol cards caught her attention and regularly help her to become aware of current personal life topics. She is also very much interested in the books "Energized Angel Symbols", "Engelsymbole für Kinder" and as an expectant mother in "Engel begleiten durch Schwangerschaft, Geburt und die Zeit danach". She began to lay protection circles with the symbol cards to get angelic support for problems and questions in her own family.

Being asked for concrete examples of successes in her job, she talks about two very striking effects which her colleagues and she often experience: Two Aura-Essences have a powerful effectiveness. The Angel Aura Essence for children "Hariel" makes upset and nervous children calmer and more relaxed. They can more easily

concentrate on their duties, games and other activities. Or they can just simply listen to stories much better and take part in fantasy journeys.

The Angel Aura Essence "Korathel", for concentration, always has a positive effect. With its help the teachers can see and feel that the children do their work faster, with more concentration, and fewer mistakes.

Maria would like to mention that the children use the Angel Aura Essences voluntarily. The children are taught to feel their own needs and so they only approach Maria for an Angel Aura Essence, if they have the desire. Intuitively the children take the essence which is good for them at that particular moment. Children with special needs, or handicapped children, are in no way excluded from this sensitivity to feel what they need. They almost invariably choose the most suitable essence for themselves.

Her colleagues were a bit reserved at the beginning and partly laughed at the Angel Aura Essences. Now they love to work with them and are convinced of their effects by the daily successes. The children seem to have an openness towards angels, symbols and Angel Aura Essences and see the work with them as the most natural thing in the world. Maria noticed this attitude especially when she used the angel symbols for children for relaxation exercises. She also noticed that children from immigrants with an Islamic background are extremely open for angels and their work. These tools might contain an especially strong connecting and integrating power.

With angels in the kindergarten

Maria H., born in 1973, from Vienna, went to a technical school, but does not feel like a technician. Her true love involves working with children. After A-levels she attended a college for kindergarten teachers. Since then she has worked in different kindergartens in Vienna with only one interruption – her maternity leave.

Maria's approach to the angelic world was a rather unfortunate one. After giving birth she suffered from back and leg aches for one year. After doctors had not really been able to help her, her boss recommended she go to an alternative therapist. She quickly discovered that the epidural anesthesia, and the medication during the delivery, were at the root of her problems.

The therapist put one of the Angel Combi Symbols no. 11 "Lunael" under her back where the pain was. This symbol is helpful against viruses and bacteria. She also put a protection circle around her body with some of the Angel Symbols 1–49 which she had tested out before.

After a short while Maria felt a pulling feeling in her back which stayed until the following day. She could not explain this at all. Before Maria went for her second session, the pain had eased and she could happily tell the therapist that she was without pain! Eventually, about six weeks later, Maria went for her last session to the therapist where she found out the background topic of her pains: the multiple burdens of household, child and job. Maria's high sense of responsibility causes high demands on herself which puts her body and soul too much under pressure. This is why her

body gave the alarm. As soon as she had sorted out the topic, the pains did not come back again.

This personal experience sparked off her interest in the energies from the angelic world. She got herself a book from Ingrid Auer, but turned her attention back to her everyday life, her family and her job.

Two years later Maria was involved in a traffic accident. She and her husband were seriously injured. Her little son, in the back seat, was unharmed. She had to stay in hospital for one week and was on sick leave for another three weeks. When she came home, Maria remembers an incident with her son. Her son's strange behaviour had already given her reasons to think. He seemed to be more anxious, sensitive and compassionate than normal for his age. He often had trouble getting to sleep, irrespective of his mother's attention.

Maria spent a lot of time talking to her boy and found out that he could perceive souls and angels. His recurring detailed information, his dialogues with these beings, his impressions and experiences made no other conclusion possible.

In the light of this, Maria remembered that her son had described the accident in great detail two weeks before it happened. His ability to see things in advance was not just a childlike fantasy.

All these experiences developed a desire in Maria to find out more about the angelic world. She saw it as her personal task to open people's contact to the angels. As her relationship to adults has always been an insecure one, she addressed her ambition towards the education of children.

Maria attended Ingrid Auer's training seminars and found out that there are ways to contact the angels without having to be shown through hard strokes of fate. Since then Maria can approach other people more easily and have relaxed conversations.

Motivated by her own experiences, Maria decided not just to use angel energies in her family, but also at her work with children. A specific reason was the parents' wish for the children to drink more during their stay in the kindergarten. How should she motivate the children to do so?

Maria bought several packets of the "Angel Symbols for children 1–21" and offered them to the children. The children now had great fun every day drawing a special card and putting it under the drinking glass. Although the content was still ordinary tap water, the children said the water tasted much better. Since then drinking has not been an unpleasant procedure any more, but a cheerful and playful event that turned out to be exciting every day. The parents were very happy with the result and some parents also started to use the angel cards at home.

Some time later, Maria's little son went to the kindergarten, together with his mother. His special abilities and unusual sensitivity have stayed or have even increased. Whenever he found another child with problems, pains or worries, he started to look for the suitable card from the set, gave it to the child, or put it in their pocket. The teacher was amazed to see how quickly bad moods, aches and pains, and fears, disappeared - without a reasonable explanation.

Maria watched all this carefully and found out, that especially the Angel Combi Oil no. 3 "Hariel", the "Angel Emergency Oil for children", had a wonderful effect. The children felt intuitively that this oil was good for them. Now it is an established practice that whenever the children feel bad or have pains, they go and get the oil. Even hyperactive children, who usually don't like any physical contact, react positively, and relax quickly.

Maria's son's medial abilities remained: he can see people's aura as soon as they are close to him. Although he is still so young, he knows that his aim in life is to help people. He often sees blue rays which could hint at his closeness to Archangel Michael. He is convinced, "You only have to switch off, then anybody can see or hear the angels".

One day his handicapped grandmother fell out of the wheelchair. He immediately got the Angel-Emergency-Oil, massaged it on her head and put his hand on her back: His grandmother was painless within a short time. The amazing child often uses the following two Angel Symbols: The children's symbol no. 17 "Angel Goriel" (Angel message: you are secure") and the symbol of "Archangel Michael".

Already, months before he should start school, Maria's son was dead against the whole event. Every night he wanted to hear one story out of Ingrid Auer's book "Engelsymbole für Kinder" (Angel Symbols for Children). "Laura's first day at the new school". He heard it again and again, grasping the symbol in his hand, until his fears got less and less, and eventually disappeared.

Of course, Maria's successful results did not remain hidden from her colleagues. More and more often the teachers use the Angel Aura Essence "Angel Hariel" to cleanse the rooms. The atmosphere gets noticeably more pleasant and soothing for adults and children. Although Maria's colleagues do not want to talk about angel energies openly, they even use the Angel's children's symbols after a hard day's work.

For some time Maria has systematically applied the "Angel Symbol cards 1–49". Even her colleagues use them without any action on her part. Also the helpers found the angelic tools more and more interesting. Maria watches how these energies spread easily and quickly. They reach more and more people with their positive effects. Maria does not know yet where her life is taking her. She can imagine a career as an energy practitioner alongside her job as a kindergarten teacher.

Angels in the family

Marita K., born in 1953, is a housewife and mother of two grown-up sons from Switzerland. Angels were a remote topic during her schooldays and her catholic upbringing.

One day she visited her friend's gift shop when all of a sudden Ingrid Auer's book "Energized Angel Symbols" with the cards, caught her attention. She bought the book, enjoyed reading it and enrolled at Ingrid's next seminar. At the seminar she was filled with happiness, fascination and a so far unknown indescribable joy. Therefore she decided to start working with the cards every day.

Her husband and sons were sceptical towards Marita's new interests. When she wanted to take part in an angel-summer-camp with Ingrid Auer, their mistrust increased. Her family feared Marita might fall into the hands of a sect. They resisted vigorously. Eventually Marita prevailed and gave "her three men" a personal symbol when she came back home.

Her older son emphatically rejected her suspicious behaviour. He had just started at university, but felt after some time, that the decision was not quite right. Marita offered him support from the angelic world. She gave him the Angel Aura Essences "Energetic Cleansing" and "Energetic Boundary", and laid an Angel protection circle with angel symbols. Shortly afterwards her son started another course, came back home and felt good with his decision.

One day, Marita's husband, who did not believe in the angel energies, was struggling under pressure in his job. During this painful time, he more and more opened and got ready to accept the angels' help. To regain strength, he sprayed the Angel Aura Essences "Energetic Boundary", "Energetic Cleansing" and "Archangel Michael" into his aura every day. With full power he tackled the problems in the company where he had a management position. After a year's hard work he had, in fact, changed the situation.

Marita primarily involves the angels in private problems within her family. However, if she is asked, she is happy to offer her knowledge to friends as well.

One day Marita's sister was diagnosed with breast cancer and was treated by traditional medicine. Before the chemotherapy, Marita gave her an Angel Combi Symbol which her sister should wear on her body. The doctor also agreed that she could put the medicine on the Angel Symbol no. 4 "Angel for Purity and Clarity" before the treatment. Additionally Marita put the Angel Symbol "Archangel Raphael" under her sister's pillow. After the chemotherapy she hardly suffered from any sickness.

After the operation radiation therapy was necessary. Marita gave her sister the Angel Aura Essence and an Angel Combi Symbol no. 37 "Sonael": Much to the doctors' surprise, the patient did not have any burns on the treated skin.

Marita's sister was prescribed sleeping pills during her stay in hospital. But Marita brought her sister the meditation CD "Archangel Raphael", by Ingrid Auer, into the hospital. But she found that she could sleep well without any pills. When she left hospital, she gave the CD to a patient in the neighbouring bed, who was also suffering from sleeping problems. This lady could also get to sleep without any drugs, with the help of this CD.

When Marita's nephew started school, he was diagnosed with dyslexia. Marita wanted to help and suggested that he work with

the "Angel Symbol cards 1–49", every day. The boy became calmer and more secure, and even the climate in the classroom improved for teachers and students. In the meantime the young man has not only got to grips with his dyslexia, but has also successfully passed his A-levels. Reading has not become his great passion though, so he decided to study Mathematics.

Marita's brother-in-law is a geologist teaching at university. As he was extremely demanding towards himself and others, he started to suffer from burn-out. When he came home in the evening, he felt tired and exhausted. As a scientist he was very doubtful about Marita's attempts to help with angel energies. After some pressure from his wife he gave in and took the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Cleansing", "Energetic Boundary" and "Archangel Michael", every day. Although he still does not believe in the angels' help, he deals with his stress much better and feels better in his job again since he has been taking the Angel Aura Essences.

With angels through pregnancy

Sabina W., born in 1957 and from Bad Ischl, is a trained midwife who worked in a hospital for 15 years. She is now working as a freelance midwife, because she was longing for more professional freedom and independence. She is literally available, day and night, for birth at home, and offers craniosacral therapy, yoga courses and life counselling, for mothers to be.

Sabina's approach to spirituality was shaped by her early childhood and her religious parents who never questioned the existence of angels. According to her, there were two further steps on her way, showing her the borders of material life and the continuation of the life of one's soul beyond the so-called end: A channel-ling pointing the way and a near-death-experience while she was giving birth to her third child.

She had her first contact with the angelic tools through an expectant mother who showed her how she worked with Ingrid Auer's Angel Symbol cards successfully. Sabina still finds it amazing that these hints came from a rational thinking woman, who was an academically trained statistician, and not from an esoteric background. Sabina made her first attempts with the Angel Symbol cards and was so touched that she bought the angel symbols with the book. Since then she has worked with the angel symbols daily. She uses a personal angel symbol and integrates angel energies in her family and her job.

As in many families, Sabina's husband is more sceptical and cautious towards his wife's work with the angels. His attitude is more

watching, but not rejecting, as the energetic cleansing of rooms with the help of the Angel Aura Essence seems to do him good. Sabina's daughters, an architect and a lawyer, have used the tools mainly before tests and against nightmares. They mainly apply the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Cleansing" and some Angel Combi Oils. Her son is more reserved, as he has not had any major problems yet.

Sabina draws Angel Symbol cards for herself and her expectant mothers every day. She uses the Aura-Essence "Energetic Cleansing" for the rooms, but her favourite one is "Archangel Jophiel". From time to time she also uses the Aura-Essence "Archangel Michael". According to her own experiences meditations offer an additional help.

She notices that the angels are of increasing importance especially at initial consultations with pregnant women. Most of the expectant mothers know about angels and are glad about their protection.

Physically and emotionally Sabina also supports her clients with yoga exercises. The Angel Combi Symbols, Angel Combi Oils and the Angel Aura Essences have an additional positive effect on pregnancy and birth. Also prayers for a good birth strengthen and encourage.

Sabina has developed a certain feeling whether a birth will be normal, without complications. She even feels the right time to be at the house for the birth. It has a soothing effect to light a candle in the room where the birth takes place: It spreads a peaceful atmosphere, calms the burdening situation and tense expectations, and the feeling of safety and security pervades all.

The angel energies can still be felt after birth. Even postnatal bleedings and other unpleasant after effects can be avoided.

Sabina remains in contact with many of her clients after birth. That's why she knows that screaming babies can be helped with Angel Combi Oils and Angel Combi Essences. The children calm down quickly and are able to arrive on the material level more easily.

Sabina is happy and proud to say that all her births have been successful and without problems. This makes her confident and optimistic for the future.

Angels and kinesiology

Lutz M., born in 1959, from Ried in Upper Austria, has been working as a kinesiologist and energy practitioner for many years. Recently he has started to give seminars. His education and professional development are quite contrary to his present vocation and passion, to support people looking for help. After taking his A-levels at a Polytechnic College for Technology, he studied business administration. He soon changed into the IT sector, where he worked in several leading positions. Before his present job, he was manager of quality assurance for ERP-software. Logical thinking and analyzing are his personal strengths.

There were no early signs of spirituality, apart from an early interest in parapsychology. However, at the age of 25, he began to suffer from serious asthma problems. But this was the key to a change in his life. This extremely cerebral person found his way to spirituality.

His then girl-friend was interested in helping him overcome his asthma. She introduced him to kinesiology and subtle healing methods such as the old Indian Vedic healing. As a musician he realized that chanting, a spiritual practice with melodic reciting of Vedic mantras, provides a sudden energetic effect. He became aware that music can touch the mental part of one's life. He was particularly impressed by the fact that vibrations of sounds can deal with mental blockages.

For him it is extremely important and effective to harmonize chakras and the aura. Every problem ought to be solved by an integrated approach.

Alongside his job, he underwent training in kinesiology, learned different treatments and acquired knowledge in anatomy, acupuncture and the subtle healing methods "Pranic Healing" and "Prana Vita". Since September 2007 he has been teaching "Prana Vita".

Even his approach to the angelic world was quite a dramatic one. When he got separated from his long-term girl-friend, she gave him a present: "Energized Angel Symbols 1-49" by Ingrid Auer. During this hard time with depression, he found strength and mental help through these cards and the book.

It motivated him to attend Ingrid Auer's training seminars and one-day angel workshops. He experienced all these events as unique sensations and could feel more and more new energies. He was able to get connected with the spiritual levels. It made him extremely happy to feel all these happenings as true and authentic. Since then Lutz has not worked for himself and others without angel energies, primarily the Angel Aura Essences and Angel Symbols. He discovers more and more aspects of their effectiveness. He remembers especially well the following examples:

Normally you bring useful or funny presents to a wedding. That's what Lutz did when he and his wife were invited to a business partner's wedding. They gave the newly married couple the set "Energized Angel Symbols 1-49" and the Angel Aura Essence "Angel Meditation" which holds the energies of eight Archangels.

Right at the start of the wedding celebration, the bride started to feel sick, so that she had to lie down. She feared she might have to leave her own wedding ahead of time. Kinesiologic attempts made no difference. Finally Lutz took the Angel Aura Essence "Angel Meditation" out of the parcel and sprayed it on the bride. Soon she was fine again, was able to dance the bridal waltz, and celebrated with her guests until the morning. The wedding celebration was saved.

Two days before her divorce proceedings were to begin, a distraught lady came to Lutz. She was naturally nervous and concerned about the outcome. She feared problems, false statements from her husband, embarrassing questions and false accusations. Lutz supported her with Angel Symbols, she drew an Angel Card, which she could take to the trial. The result? The trial passed without event, and was both objective and fair. Her husband acted constructively, and both separated peacefully and in friendship.

At the seminar "Traditional masculine energy in the light of evolution" Lutz had the following experience: one participant in the seminar had badly hurt his hand the week before. During the seminar he struggled with emotional and physical problems. Suddenly he was in serious pain again. Lutz had his angel tools with him and he could help him and ease the pain with the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Metatron", with the Angel Combi Oils no. 01 "Lariel" and no. 02 "Nanael" (Physical and Emotional Angel-Rescue-Oil). It turned out that the man knew about angel symbols, because his wife had only recently attended a seminar with Ingrid Auer. If you still think this is all a coincidence, just wait and see: at the seminar his wife asked Ingrid Auer to test out a suitable essence for her husband. She tested that exactly Metatron's energy would be just right for her husband. Here the circle closes: out of 15 different essences, it was the essence of "Archangel Metatron" which Lutz had with him. For the first time the man was open to angel energies and could deal with the topic that was the background to his injury.

Recently Lutz was visited by a woman who felt terribly exhausted. The relationship with her husband was about to break up and her business was on the verge of bankruptcy. Her existential fears drove her into depression. Lutz tried to help her with "Emotional Clearing" and asked her about her attitude to angels. She replied she had always wanted some angelic support and guidance, but

was unable to believe this was possible. Therefore Lutz made a meditation including a "trip" to her Guardian angels. After the treatment, where Lutz also used an Angel Aura Essence and the Angel Symbol cards, she regained hope. Strengthened and concentrated, she went through the negotiations successfully.

During his treatments Lutz always has the meditation music "Klangwelten" on. (Highly vibrating meditation music, composed and played by Andy Eicher and Wolfgang Tejral, Lichtpunkt Records) He prefers Angel Aura Essences and angel symbols for himself and uses them to clear his therapy rooms. For his clients he also uses Angel Essences and Angel Combi Oils. He can point out numerous examples of success: with problems at school, for example, before oral and written exams, dealing with fears, as well as general topics such as problems with concentration.

Lutz basically deals with allergies in a similar sort of way. He is especially happy about quick and lasting release from allergies which conventional medicine had treated unsuccessfully. However he is convinced of the indispensability of conventional and alternative medicine and other complementary treatments.

Women often look for his help when they have problems with femininity and don't know how to cope with it. Problems during pregnancy or giving birth – for instance after a caesarean – often cause inferiority feelings, rejection of the child, and lack of sexual sensitivity, etc. With the angelic tools Lutz has always managed, so far, to release these blockages. His is always impressed by the speed and efficiency of the angel energy's help.

Recently Lutz has made an interesting discovery: With the help of the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Cleansing", "Angel Sonael" and "Angel Meditation" he is able not only to neutralize negative radiation in rooms, but also transform the energy into positive

vibrations. The ampoules for bioenergetic therapists can also be used by putting them on the starting and finishing points of water and earth's radiation lines. The scientific background remains a mystery to him, but what counts is the result. And the results are overpowering.

When energies become visible

Wolfgang S., born in 1943, comes from Rannersdorf, near Vienna. Only several years ago he started to concentrate on the energetic support of physical energy deficits with the help of a special bio-feedback appliance. After his Alevels he worked freelance in the insurance business. Now retired, his aim is, with his methods, to support those in need of help.

Many years ago a problem that seemed to be insoluble, lead him on this path: Circular hair loss at the back of his head. "By chance" a man on the street stopped him and recommended to him a homeopathic doctor who had been working with different methods of self-healing. A friendship developed between Wolfgang and the doctor. Through the doctor, Wolfgang realized that everybody has the greatest healing potential within themselves. We only have to be aware of it to activate it. In this way Wolfgang solved his hair problem himself.

Wolfgang is convinced that conventional medicine and our current health system are not enough. He intensively worked on healthy nutrition, food supplements and attended numerous seminars for his spiritual and mental development. Since then he has been working with a computer-assisted bio-feedback appliance. He can measure and graphically represent the energy status of every single organ down to cell-level. (see pictures in the annex)

Even laymen can easily understand the pictures on the screen of his appliance. They show exactly in which areas there are energy deficits which might, sooner or later, lead to illnesses. The system even proves an emotional and mental connection between the energy deficits and physical weak points. The bio-feedback appliance can show what a change in behaviour and attitude of a person to a certain problem, can energetically cause in the body of the client. It also shows the effects of active participation, in solving a problem. Wolfgang is convinced that everybody could improve their quality of life and prolong their lives.

Through a friend Wolfgang made contact with Ingrid Auer and the angel energies. For testing reasons, she gave him all the Angel Essences in ampoules. She especially had them made for the use of bio-feedback appliances. Via his equipment he transferred these energies into the subtle body of his clients. He was surprised when he saw the effects on the screen: So far he had to use several tools to stabilize different weak points in the body. Now one single Angel Essence harmonized all the deficits. This effect was confirmed in all the other energy transfers he had made.

Wolfgang leaves the choice of the right Angel Essence to his clients. He has noticed that they spontaneously choose the right ampoule. The accuracy of their decision is retested with his appliance. Only then he finds out the background topic of the chosen essence. He finds it important that the clients are not only energetically stabilized, but that they also work on the causes and backgrounds of their problems and blockages intensively. This helps to solve a problem permanently. As experience shows, in most of the cases his clients can quickly see which problem is to be dealt with. Sometimes it is necessary to work on the background topic in a personal talk.

So far, everybody, even people who had no connection to angels, have reacted positively to the transfer of angel energies. In many cases, he could further point out, that people who realize and accept that angel powers are available for us anywhere, could

measurably recover more quickly than others. Targets people set themselves, can be reached without pressure, when accompanied with positive affirmations in combination with angel energies. Clients can understand the progress of their energetic and mental improvement and, stabilization, with Wolfgang's computer system.

Wolfgang always wears his personal symbol on his body when he talks to clients. He also regularly clears all the rooms with the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Cleansing". For his personal protection he uses the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Boundary". He, more and more, trusts his feelings, and allows the angels to guide him.

Angels on the farm

Sylvia K., born in 1969, from Hallwang near Salzburg, underwent commercial training and worked in trade and tourism before she followed her true calling. On her partner's organic farm she slipped into a new role as a farmer. She also started to work freelance as a Reiki-master and energy practitioner.

She has also developed several healing and health products, such as candles, natural herbal salts, teas, biscuits and many more things.

During her Reiki training, Sylvia heard from a neighbour about Ingrid Auer and her angelic tools, for the first time. She was extremely curious, so she attended an information evening. She was very impressed and bought some Angel Symbols and Angel Combi Symbols. As this did not seem to be enough for her, she soon attended three training seminars to find out more about the possibilities of using the symbols and essences in everyday life. There she made the experience of how an old blockage from a former life could be solved. This was the foundation for her personal development on a higher level and the access to one of her angels. Since then she has felt these connections through images in her mind, sometimes also through a voice.

With the help of her personal Angel Aurora, she started to make seminars and workshops about energy treatment. They are guided by the unconditional love of her angel and Sylvia's trust and respect of humans and animals. Her clients are not just farmers, but come from different sections of society. She offers energizing

and harmonizing, channelings, and spiritual life counselling and also support of animals. Sylvia is sure that it is her mission to help in accompanying men and animals on their path to the light. She likes to call herself an "angel therapist". As such, she has had many beautiful experiences with people and animals.

In her family Angel Aura Essences, Angel Symbols and Angel Essences play an important part. Every day Sylvia's children choose for themselves what they need. A certain Angel Combi Oil applied on the chest, was more helpful with a cough than any medicine. The "Angel-Emergency-Drops", Angel Combi Essence no. O1 "Lariel" have never let her down. Sylvia has also noticed that clients who had already had contact with Bach flowers, were especially open for Angel Essences.

In her seminars and workshops her clients choose a suitable Angel Symbol. In private sessions, Sylvia tests the right symbol with a dowser. Sylvia has made the experience several times, that clients had burdening sexual experiences from their childhood or previous lives. With the help of the Angel Symbols and Angel Essences, the blockages could be solved and the women could let these traumas qo.

Some examples of Sylvia's experiences with animals: On her farm cows are literally spoilt. According to individual needs, she sprays Angel Aura Essences, such as "Archangel Jophiel" to cheer them up, and "Archangel Raphael" to encourage the healing process. In the cowshed she occasionally uses the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Cleansing". Sylvia additionally uses mental healing methods as well.

Sylvia says that her cows especially like the Angel Aura Essences. They stretch their necks as if they could not get enough of them. The animals also seem to like the "Klangwelten" CDs. (It has been

known to all that animals like certain music, for example Mozart.) Sylvia has also found a way to communicate with the animals. She gets to know about their moods, their "social tensions" and pays them loving attention. Together with her partner she has been recently planning the building of a new animal-friendly stable.

Hoof care is important, but extremely unpopular with the cattle. Therefore Sylvia gives the animals Reiki treatment and sprays them with the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Zadkiel", while the farmer is making the necessary preparations. This calms the cattle down and they don't show any resistance to the whole procedure. The farmer checks whether stones or other items have got stuck in the animals' hoofs, which could cause bad inflammations. Instead of the usual disinfectants, Sylvia uses the gentle Angel Essences and Angel Combi Oils which produce just the same effect.

Cows are nature's creations and not simply machines for producing milk, and more cows. This is why Sylvia allows them an appropriate time for rest after calving, before they breed again. For two weeks Sylvia supplies them with certain Angel Combi Essences so that they can become pregnant again safely. This method is very reliable. As a special treat the animals get a handful of cereal with their food. She puts the grain on Angel Symbols to energize it. It is not surprising that the energetically strengthened cows provide milk that easily meets the high quality standards of organic milk. If necessary, after milking, Angel Symbols are put on the udder. This helps to avoid dangerous germs, bacteria and viruses.

There are also other animals on the farm. Once a cat was seriously ill, more or less waiting to die. Sylvia supported it lovingly with Angel Symbols and Angel Combi Oils. She managed to ease its hopeless situation and pains.

The chickens have a lot of freedom around the farm. "But they often come back with burdening energies", Sylvia says. Therefore she sprays them with Angel Aura Essences in the evening to cleanse them energetically. And the reward: The chickens are very healthy and lay extraordinarily big and tasty eggs throughout the year.

Getting through everyday school life more easily

Susanne S., born in 1962, lives south of Vienna. She teaches English, Biology and Physics in a Secondary Modern School. Besides her family and her job, the teacher likes to spend time in her garden and in nature. She enjoys Nordic walking. When her daughter, who is now grown-up, was born, she was allergic to different foods and medicines. Susanne joined a group of friends who talked about problems and questions about life from a new – spiritual – perspective.

One day she discovered Ingrid Auer's Angel Essences in a book shop. She was fascinated by their looks and colours and especially drawn to the pink label of no. 7 "Angel for Optimism and Beauty". This was just perfect for the depressed mood she was in then. Once again she felt uneasy about the place where she and her husband had built their house. Soon after she had left the shop, she took a few drops of the Angel Essence. Susanne felt a pleasant change.

When she arrived home, she was overwhelmed by a so far unknown optimistic feeling. She dynamically started to prettify and decorate her house. Her discomfort was gone. All the things she had tried out before, such as literature concerning alternative medicine, homeopathy and Bach flowers, now belonged to the past. She could feel the comforting effect of the angel energies on her own body. Her first positive experience made her wish for more. She bought the book "Energized Angel Symbols 1-49" with the set of cards. She immediately started to work with it. To relax from

the stress of her job, she more and more often chose an energized Angel Symbol card and put it on her body. Within ten minutes she felt relaxed and full of energy. As a result of her extreme sensitivity, she often had negative reactions to homeopathic remedies. With the Angel Symbols she has never had any bad reactions, but only positive ones.

When Susanne read about Ingrid Auer's seminars in the internet, she spontaneously decided to do the training seminars. She didn't just get useful information, but also developed a feeling for the tools from the angelic world. She also enjoyed the exchange of experiences among the participants. She attended more angel and guardian angel seminars by Ingrid Auer where she could clearly feel the angel energies and found proof of her idea of angels. Enthusiastically she purchased almost all the books and symbols, many essences and oils.

After she had had abdominal pain for some days, she used the Angel Combi Symbols no. 11 "Lunael", which are helpful with viruses and bacteria. She could feel a powerful energy flowing through her body. She had stuck the symbols on the inside of her vest, so that they just touched her abdomen. The pains disappeared by themselves.

Since then Susanne has been offering meditation evenings for friends, which are also attended by other interested people. She also offers evening talks where she includes the topics of a one-day-seminar into four evenings. The topics are "Children of the new age" or "How to use Angel Symbols". She focuses on protection circles with the "Angel Symbols 1 - 49" and the "Angel Symbols for Children", the energetic solution of oaths and vows and cuttings with the Angel Symbols.

Susanne regularly lays Angel Symbol protection circles for herself, her family and for her students. She uses the protection circles for children with behaviour problems and children from difficult social backgrounds, without telling anybody. In this way she has already celebrated numerous "quiet successes", if she has been able to help. Behavioural disorders have turned to normal, class-mates stick together more, and even grades improved at school. Also the work atmosphere in the classroom improves, which she can already feel the lesson after she has laid an angel protection circle.

One evening, after a meditation, a friend of hers spoke to Susanne about her fears of an operation she had to undergo. An examination showed that she had polyps in her abdomen. She wanted it sorted out before her holiday. Susanne made an Archangel Raphael meditation with her, putting the Angel Transformation Card no. 02 "Angel for subtle regeneration" on her abdomen. Her friend closed her eyes and imagined the polypus being swept out of her body. Afterwards she described the feeling as if "I had been cleaned with a high-pressure cleaner inside". During the next ten days she constantly had the Angel Symbol card on her body and imagined the symbol and the picture of the high-pressure cleaner. Every evening she recalled the pictures of the meditation. When she came in for the next check-up, the growths were gone and the operation cancelled.

An example from the animal kingdom: Susanne's daughter has a horse, which suffered from a strange skin disease. The medicine prescribed by the vet didn't help. Susanne decided to experiment with the Angel Essence for physical emergency, no. 01 "Lariel". Only three days later the healing process started and the horse's hair started to grow again.

As Susanne's daughter has been very sensitive since birth and also overreacts to vaccinations, she put the medicine for the tick-

injection on the Angel Symbol no. 04 "Angel for Purity and Clarity" over night. This time there were no reactions after the injection: no inflamed injection site, no cold, no cough.

Susanne likes to experiment with the Angel Symbols for Children and the Angel Aura Essences in her classes. At the beginning of a lesson the children can draw an angel card and put it on any part of their body (forehead, chest, solar plexus) or on the chair where they sit. She sprays the Angel Aura Essences in the classroom. Much to Susanne's pleasure, the children react seriously, almost devoutly, as if they could feel the effects. One time, at the end of the lesson, when they handed in the cards, they could describe their feelings: "Relaxing, refreshing, encouraging concentration, funny, strengthening, improving one's memory, no more headache, entertaining, carefree, fun with learning (!)". Wouldn't we have all liked to experience this during our school times?

The children are so fascinated by the effects, that they ask for the Angel Symbols and Angel Aura Essences again and again. Especially before written exams, and even in subjects which Susanne does not teach. They help them calm down and get rid of general tension. Susanne thinks that the Angel Aura Essence "Uriel" is especially suitable for getting grounded and the Angel Aura Essences "Archangel Michael" and "Archangel Hariel" in calming down. The children also love the Angel Aura Essences "Archangel Metatron" and "Angel Meditation". The Angel Aura Essence "Korathel" helps children with concentration problems.

Some children asked Susanne before a maths test if they could take a symbol home and put it under their pillow at night. They say it soothes them and makes them sleep better. One class was so fascinated, that the children wanted to save their pocket money to buy Angel Aura Essences for the lessons. They wrote a simple, but touching, note for Susanne: "Thank you, Miss, that you are here for us."

At the beginning of the school year one very scared boy wanted to go home in the middle of the lesson. As he had bad marks in Primary School, he got psychotherapeutic treatment. Susanne thought he was quite intelligent. She let him pull an "Angel Symbol for Children" in the lessons for two months. During this time his behaviour gradually changed. Now he is a good student, without any problems, who feels fine in his class.

Susanne also uses the support of the angelic world with colleagues and superiors. The atmosphere in the staff room and problems with the head and colleagues have been improved with angel protection circles. The Angel Aura Essences "Energetic Cleansing", "Archangel Chamuel", "Archangel Gabriel", "Archangel Michael" and "Angel Sonael" are particularly suitable. The colleagues even noticed it and discussed it, although they still don't know anything about protection circles.

A teaching colleague of Susanne's was intending to open a learning studio for private lessons. She asked Susanne for help to support and strengthen her to achieve her aim. She recommended that her colleague work with Angel Symbols, which she did. She lay angel protection circles for her private students before they had a test. She has been extremely successful since then, and children and parents are queuing for her lessons. To increase her efficiency, she also uses the "Angel Symbols for Children".

Susanne has also made her own personal experience. Her physical weak spot is the gastrointestinal tract. She often suffers from flatulence and stomach-ache. A natural herbalist who a friend had recommended to her, gave her drops and told her to follow a special diet. This made her weaker every day, until she gave it up - completely discouraged. Eventually she had the idea to test out an Angel Symbol. It was the Angel Transformation Symbol no. 08 "Angel for Balanced Sense of Duty". Within a short time Susanne

felt fine again, being able to eat normally. She felt positive and full of energy. She sees this spontaneous recovery as a "miracle", however she knows where it comes from.

Susanne has collected her own Angel medicine cabinet. It includes the Angel Combi Essence no. 01 "Lariel" for physical emergency, the Angel Combi Essence no. 02 "Nanael" for emotional emergency, the Angel Combi Essence no. 03 "Hariel" for children's emergency, the Angel Combi Essence no. 04 "Aniel", no. 07 "Carmiel", no. 11 "Lunael", the Angel Aura Essences "Energetic Boundary" and "Energetic Cleansing" and the Angel Symbol no. 38 "Angel for Release from Karma". Susanne decides according to her feelings, what she needs. Sometimes she uses her pendulum. Almost daily she uses the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Cleansing" in the rooms of her house and her seminar room. Thinking of computer work and mobile phones she often uses the Angel Aura Essence "Sonael".

She likes using the Angel Aura Essences "Archangel Uriel" and "Archangel Chamuel", not for special occasions, but just for feeling good. She puts her daily drinking water on the symbol no. 04 "Angel for Purity and Clarity" or the symbol "Archangel Gabriel". Susanne works with angels every day and looks forward to gaining new knowledge and experiences.

Angels by a doctor's side

Nikola N, born in 1977, and from Vienna, is a G.P. and is about to finish her training in psychiatry and psychotherapy, specialising in behavioural therapy. With her warm and friendly nature, she can easily approach tense patients and assert herself in the difficult environment of a psychiatric ward.

In her early teens she developed an interest in the esoteric, as her father was suffering from a serious illness. He looked for help in alternative healing methods, religious belief and pilgrimages. His fate was the impetus for her decision to become a doctor. Later, when Nikola got to know her future husband's family, she found more connections to the Far Eastern Zen martial arts discipline, meditation and energy work.

A few years ago Nikola got a new neighbour. Step by step the two ladies became friends. The neighbour was Ingrid Auer. Nikola and her husband are both very open and interested in everything beyond the material world. They soon got acquainted with the angelic tools and now use them in their everyday lives. Nikola talks about her own personal experiences:

In the hall of her house, just at the entrance, there is a large picture with the symbol of Archangel Chamuel. Since it was placed there, visitors have spontaneously commented on the pleasant atmosphere, when entering the house.

Before she starts her work, she regularly protects her aura with the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Boundary". Since she has been doing this, she has noticed that the tension and tiredness has been reduced. Some days her professional stress, confrontations with difficult patients, and the tense atmosphere amongst her colleagues (who are also under pressure), combine to bring Nikola down. She has noticed that, after work, a relaxing bath, energized with the Angel Combi Essences no. 02 "Nanael", and no. 39 "Raniel", are a relief. She can switch off and let go the tension and burdens of the day more easily.

The Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Gabriel" wraps Nikola in a sense of well-being, Archangel Raphael protects her from possible discomfort and illnesses and the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Michael" helps to energize her rooms.

With the first sign of fever blisters, she always uses the Angel Combi Essence no. 01 "Lariel", putting drops on the sore part of her lips. "The essences helps me more than any other medicine. Herpes has not flared up since then."

She lays angel protection circles with the Angel Symbol cards to support her visualising and wishing. She either draws the cards spontaneously or uses the dowser. She normally uses the "Angel Symbols 1–49" and the "Angel Transformation Symbols 1–21". Nikola says that so far the protection circles have always worked: when she was looking for a training place, when she had to solve different problems, and as support in important private decisions.

She has also made various positive experiences with the angelic tools with her friends and relations: a distant relation had been suffering from schizophrenia since she was 25. She was under medical treatment and with the help of drugs, she could more or less stabilize her condition. Nikola gave her the Angel Aura Essences "Energetic Boundary" and "Energetic Cleansing" for support. Since then the patient has felt much better and can cope with her life more easily.

One of Nikola's relatives is a nurse in the intensive care unit. There she often has to look after patients in a vegetative state or an induced coma. She uses basal stimulation and aroma therapy. From Ingrid Auer's book "Angels accompany through illness, death and mourning" she takes suggestions as to how she can support and help her patients even more.

Some of her friends, with young families, complain about the frequent screaming of their babies, restless nights, nervousness, tiredness and temper. Nikola has made the experience that the Angel Aura Essence "Angel Norael", sprayed in the child's aura, quickly calms and creates a peaceful atmosphere.

Finally, there is an experience with animals: Nikola's dog, a bitch, was pseudopregnant several times. Nikola gave her a few drops of the Angel Combi Essence no. 16 "Rosael" (which is usually used by women with menstruation problems). The pains quickly subsided.

Reaching the goal with gentle power

Artur K, born in 1963, is a masseur and Zilgrei therapist in Vienna. Artur says with regret that Zilgrei is hardly offered at all in Austria. It is a combination of special breathing techniques and gentle exercise therapy which can heal blockages effectively, and without pain.

Artur is a down-to-earth man, deeply rooted in Carinthia, Austria. He went to school there. His favourite subject was Biology. He trained to be a masseur there, married there, and is the father of two children. "Blossom where God put your seeds", is his motto which he follows: open, straight, direct, natural and authentic. He loves contact with people which you can immediately feel.

Artur has always been interested in the connection between pains and their causes. He is convinced that "psychosomatic problems and physical pains are based on mental blockages". It is only possible to remove these blockages, if the patients show self-responsibility and cooperation. His successes prove him right.

His first contact with Ingrid Auer was sparked off by a small advertisement in a magazine. He bought the book and cards "Energized Angel Symbols 1–49" and started to work with it within his family. With the help of Angel Essences and Angel Oils Artur's spiritual development increased step by step. In a seminar he got to know Ingrid Auer and her angelic tools personally. He purchased all the Angel Essences and Angel Oils for his work.

He chooses these remedies with the help of his pendulum. It involves three steps: first he tests to find the right Angel Symbol card for his client. It shows him the background topic, the current – conscious or unconscious – problem of his client, which he discusses with this client before the treatment. He finds it important that the client becomes aware of the nature of the physical problem or the emotional discomfort. Then Artur tests whether and which Angel Aura Essence he should use during the treatment. Finally, he tests up to three Angel Combi Oils, and the number of drops, which he then mixes together for a very personal Angel Oil for this particular treatment.

Despite his successes, Artur remains firmly grounded. He simply sees himself as an angelic tool. His massage is intuitive and spontaneous. Sometimes he mixes Ingrid Auer's cards with other angel cards and is pleased about the uncomplicated compatibility: angels seem to know no borders, neither with cards, nor with any other tools provided. Therefore Artur also works on his own spiritual development: "I am only the well, not the spring", Artur says about himself.

The results of his work, which he deals with discreetly, are worth looking at. Many of his clients come from artistic backgrounds. Perhaps because his studio is just opposite the Viennese Opera House. One day, for example, a violin virtuoso came. He could not raise his arm any more. He was afraid that he might have to give up his job, because his doctors could not help him. Artur found out that both problems in his family and his job, were blocking two of his chakras. He realized that his massages together with the angelic tools, could let the energy flow perfectly again. Already, after just one session the musician could lift his arm about 20 centimetres. After the fifth treatment the problem was completely gone. Today he can play his instrument again without any problems or pains.

One day a lady appeared in his studio. She was suffering from a

frozen arm which she could not move any more after a serious operation. Conventional medicine could not find any reasons and was therefore unable to help. Artur noticed two blockages in the heart and throat chakra. Together with his client he worked on the roots of these blockages and did some of his proven "angel massages". After only five sessions the lady was free from pain.

A man suffering from cancer, was looking for help, because conventional medicine seemed to have failed him. Artur tested out the Angel Transformation Card no. 02 "Subtle Regeneration". During the treatment it was discovered that the patient was being neglected. With this drastic illness he unconsciously tried to gain attention from his environment. With this knowledge, the man was able to take the healing process into his own hands, supported by Artur and angel energies. Latest tests reveal that there is now some hope that the client might recover from his illness.

The example of an attractive, married lady shows that even topics from the distant past can be solved with the help of Angel Combi Oils. Without any obvious reason, she could not find any more pleasure in her sexuality. Despite loving care for her husband and a strong longing for him, she could not feel any sensual excitement. Artur discovered the secret: the aversion came from a former incarnation of her soul. When he massaged her with the Angel Combi Oil no. 56 "Nirael", the blockage and the problem were solved.

A so-called "coincidence" brought Artur together with a well-known German orthopaedist who was open for holistic treatments. As he was impressed with Artur's treatments, he asked him to work with several so-called incurable patients. Artur was not sure whether he would be the right person for this project or not. In fact he was able to achieve some significant results with his "angel massages". The patients showed sufficient improvement in their conditions to make a continuation with the massage treatment

worthwhile.

An ever-increasing number of clients and their interest in angels have proved to Artur that he has chosen the right path. He is absolutely delighted with the results of his work. He is currently planning to pass his knowledge on to colleagues in talks, seminars and one-to-one-tutorials.

Angels need not be proved

Marianne W., born in 1948, from Zell am See, was a teacher in an Agricultural college, before she retired on health grounds. She remembers her fascination with extra-sensory phenomena in her childhood and her interest in everything she could find out about Japan and China. She doesn't really know why, although in her later life a few personal connections with Japan arose. Although she came from a farm north of Vienna which she was meant to take on, she decided to become a teacher.

Some years ago she fell seriously ill, and had to undergo numerous unpleasant examinations and an operation on her head. She had a strange experience one day: she was in the x-ray unit, looking at her radiographs, when a stranger in a white coat approached her from behind, asking her quietly, "Are these your pictures?" When Maria said they were, he simply said, "You will get better". He turned around and disappeared. Marianne had never seen the man before, and has not seen him since. Nobody could tell her who the "doctor" was. She now believes that this was an angel, come to encourage her, and give her strength. It all happened more than ten years ago, and Marianne has completely recovered.

Alongside her job, Marianne has always been interested in Traditional Chinese Medicine, Chinese dietetics, herbs and roots, and underwent training in Qi-Gong. She also gained knowledge in Feng Shui, Lithotherapy and reflexology.

One day a letter of invitation to an angel event dropped through her letter box. Marianne didn't pay much attention to it at first, but shortly afterwards she received the same invitation again: an angel talk in Salzburg, with an international angel medium, was advertised. One of her daughters had an appointment in Salzburg on the same day. So they both went together and Marianne listened to the talk. "By accident" Ingrid Auer was also there introducing her Angel Symbols and Angel Essences. She invited Marianne to attend her next seminar. There Marianne bought some Angel Essences, including Archangel Raphael. On her way home she met a friend who practised geomancy. She showed her the bottle of the Angel Essence. Her friend touched the bottle and tested its energy. She was amazed as she had never felt such highly vibrating energy before.

Marianne attended further seminars at Ingrid Auer's and was especially interested in the Angel Combi Symbols. As she was diagnosed with another tumour, Marianne decided to turn her back on conventional medicine and concentrate on alternative ways of healing: Traditional Chinese Medicine, herbs, roots, healthy nutrition and lots of physical exercise. The tumour disappeared and she made a complete recovery.

Marianne has made numerous positive experiences with Ingrid's angelic tools: a former student was about to have her third baby. As she had had caesareans with her first two children, she did not have any experience of a natural birth, which made her quite scared. Also at the same time Marianne's daughter was expecting a baby. Marianne gave both the women, the Angel Combi Oil no. 18 "Vaniel", which they applied and massaged in regularly during the last two weeks of their pregnancy. They both had completely normal births and delivered healthy babies.

One day an extremely stressed young father, a car salesman, poured out his heart to Marianne: since the birth of his child, four years ago, he had not been able to sleep through the night. His daughter was screaming night after night. Visits to doctors, psychologists, healing practitioners, and energy practitioners, were not successful. Marianne recommended spraying the Angel Aura Essence "Norael" in the child's bedroom. It immediately helped and the first peaceful night followed. The man was suspicious and believed it had just been an accident. So he didn't use the essence again the next night, which he later regretted. The following night he sprayed the Angel Aura Essence again, and the child could sleep through. As his wife was also quite sceptical, he experimented for some time, before he could at last really believe in the effect of the Angel Aura Essence. The result was that the child slept through regularly.

A friend told Marianne about her one and a half-year-old grand-son, whose chest was covered in warts. Nobody could help him. Marianne gave her a bottle of the Angel Combi Oil no. 23 "Canael", for the child's parents to apply on the warts daily. Shortly afterwards, she brought the bottle back half empty: the warts had disappeared and did not return.

Marianne had several visits from depressed women who had undergone treatments in a psychiatric clinic. A Yoga teacher had recommended to them, Marianne's reflexology. She talked to the ladies for some time and gave them two or three treatments afterwards. During the massage, Marianne put angel symbols on their bodies, which they had previously drawn spontaneously. With a pendulum she tested out the support of the two Angel Combi Oils no. 14 "Corael", and no. 38 "Luciel". They are wonderfully suitable for reflexology. At the end of every session she sprayed the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Uriel" on the ladies' legs. The result was that the patients had a good feeling, their headaches and tinnitus were gone and the depressive moods had disappeared.

Two women who had breast cancer, asked Marianne for help. She gave them the Angel Combi Oil no. 55 "Licael" for massages around the breast area and to activate the lymph flow. The results were positive:

The first lady's doctor, who wanted to fix a date for the operation, could not find the knot any more. It had completely disappeared.

The second one had decided to undergo chemotherapy. Marianne gave her the Angel Combi Essence no. 02 "Nanael" for energetic support in mental emergencies. She has now finished her therapy and is reported to be completely cured.

A mother of four, who had had undergone several serious operations, came for a reflexology treatment. Through Marianne, she heard about the tools from the angelic world. Since then she has been using various Angel Combi Oils, Angel Aura Essences and has been laying angel protection circles. Her health problems have disappeared and she feels well and strong again.

The same woman had had problems with her mother-in-law for 15 years. She has laid an angel protection circle and the two women get on very well now, with hardly any misunderstandings. Also, her children often had problems at school. Marianne ordered personal angel symbols, which they always wear on their bodies: the school problems belong to the past. By the way, the same woman had a wart on her little finger: the Angel Combi Oil no. 34 "Canael" helped. The wart disappeared.

One day a hobby musician with spastic paralysis came to Marianne. His work place was extremely burdened with electric smog. Also his muscles and spine were affected by defective posture through his making music. He was scared to end up with a permanent disability. Marianne recommended him the Angel Combi Oil

no. 04 "Aniel", for energetic detoxification. In hospital he was also treated with special massages, in addition to Marianne's Qi-Gong exercises. Since then his condition has continued to improve and he is able to work normally again.

An acquaintance who was working in the insurance business, over-exerted his body with extremely demanding sports, which did not benefit his physical condition. He suffered from inflammations in his knees, therefore he needed medical treatment, good drugs and massages. Marianne gave him the Angel Combi Oil no. 28 "Cosiel" to complement his massage cream. For crucial pains Marianne gave him the Angel Combi Essence no. 01 "Lariel", as energetic help in physical emergencies. After three weeks he happily told Marianne that he was pain-free at last. He said he had "a new knee". He was so fascinated by the angel energy that he asked whether his girl friend could also come. She was interested in help, because she had problems with her boss and colleagues at work. They both got personal symbols from Ingrid Auer. His girl friend also got the Angel Aura Essences, "Energetic Boundary", "Energetic Cleansing" and "Archangel Michael". Since then much has happened: he came to a more interesting and better paid job, including a company car, and at her workplace the problems with the boss and the colleagues have been sorted out within a short space of time.

A woman, who had lost more than one child, came to Marianne in desperation. Panic attacks and high blood pressure had made her depressed. After a long talk, Marianne recommended her the Angel Combi Essence no. 41 "Somiel", and the Angel Aura Essences "Archangel Uriel" and "Archangel Jophiel". Only three days later the woman returned to her, saying, "You have saved my life. I feel good and healthy again and I can drive a car again." For further strengthening and stabilizing Marianne recommended her the Angel Essence no. 46 "Archangel Raphael".

A few months ago Marianne's sister had to undergo an operation. She agreed to Marianne spraying the Angel Aura Essence, "Archangel Raphael" in her room. Marianne also had a personal symbol made for her sister, by Ingrid Auer. Her sister lost her fear of the operation and could leave the hospital again quite quickly. Incidentally, two neighbouring patients who had watched the two ladies, also wanted this Angel Aura Essence for themselves and their families. Marianne's sister had to care for her aged mother who was often tired of life. This was so draining for her that she started to suffer from sleepless nights. Marianne sprayed the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Cleansing" in her sister's living room and bedroom, put the mother's medicine on the Angel Symbol no. 4, "Angel for Purity and Clarity", and stuck the Angel Symbol "Archangel Michael" under the mother's bed. At home Marianne also put the Angel Combi Symbols no. 59 "Ismael" under her mother's photo. She thought it might balance her mother's wish to die with her fear of dying. Since then the old lady has more peace of mind and clarity of thought, which makes Marianne's sister's nursing duties much easier.

Marianne could help people with high blood pressure with the Angel Combi Essence no. 46 "Koniel". She also found that putting your feet on the red cards of the set "Angel Symbols 1-49" brought spontaneous relief. The over-energy was guided downwards and ten minutes later the blood pressure was lower. According to Marianne's experience this is only a short temporary effect!

Marianne occasionally helps on the phone as well. Her support with angel energies has become known beyond the confines of her home town. Friends and acquaintances from Germany phone her for serious problems. She tests for them and sends them the Angel Essences and Angel Combi Oils they need. One day, a woman she didn't even know asked her for help. She had problems with her

eyes and also disputes within the family. Marianne tested for her and sent her the necessary Angel Essence. The treatment was so successful that the lady asked for a personal symbol, the Angel Combi Oil no. 25 "Cithael" to solve karmic patterns within the family and now energizes the drinking water with the Angel Symbol cards.

An estate agent complained about her sudden and absolute failure in her job. Marianne tested the appropriate Angel Essence. It might sound unbelievable, but since then the lady has been successful again.

One of Marianne's friends owns a holiday home on Lake Garda. A well-known artist came one day and complained about her sudden loss of energy, creativity and drive. During a telephone conversation, Marianne tested an Angel Essence for her and sent it to her. Today the artist is once again successful with her exhibitions. However, some time later the same artist asked Marianne for help again: her old dog could not get up any more and was unable to bark. She thought this was his end, but with the help of the Angel Essence "Archangel Raphael" he recovered.

This woman's husband was sceptical towards angel energies. But being an eyewitness to the dog's recovery, he seemed to change his mind. He wanted to have the same Angel Essence as the dog. Since then the family has used all sorts of angel energies for different situations: Angel Essences, Angel Aura Essences and Angel Combi Oils. The family are now all enthusiastic readers of Ingrid Auer's books.

For Marianne, Archangel Uriel has become an almost indispensable companion on short trips or long journeys. She has the Angel Symbol of Archangel Uriel in her car and wears it on her body when she travels. So she no longer has problems involving changes

of climate, unusual diet, or on a plane, on boats, in coaches, or on winding roads. Now she even seems to be unaffected by jet-lag. Travelling to China with a group of people, she could even convince her travelling companions to take the Angel Essence no. 47 "Archangel Uriel": nobody ever complained, everybody was well.

As already mentioned above, Marianne completed a Qi Gong teacher's training. She does not offer courses, but is happy to give advice in one-to-one tutorials. She uses the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Cleansing" before and after the sessions, to clear and protect her aura and the room from burdening energies.

Nursing with angelic help

Astrid B, born in 1980, from Meggen, works in a Swiss hospital as a trained nurse. She is just about to set up her own business as a freelance energy practitioner. Influenced by her mother, she developed an interest in health, especially naturopathy, from an early age. Astrid devoured any literature she could find on the subject. As a nurse she developed the strong desire to get in contact with angels and to find proof of their existence. She started a course in aura soma and attended another course for painting angel pictures where she got to know Ingrid Auer.

This was the key experience to her career planning: at this moment she knew she wanted to become an "angel therapist", nothing else. On the internet she discovered that she could still enrol at the first angel summer camp with Ingrid Auer. There she knew she wanted to reduce her hours at the hospital to dedicate more time to her training as an angel energy practitioner. Soon afterwards she finished her nursing career and found a suitable place to practise her new career.

Astrid already applied the angel energies during her time as a nurse in the hospital. She did it without much fuss and her colleagues and bosses accepted it. In her ward the patients often suffered from pains, sleeping disorders, confusion after operations and fear of the future. Therefore the night shifts were an extremely draining challenge for the staff.

Astrid experimented with angel protection circles with the Angel Symbols 1–49 and she sprayed the Angel Aura Essences "Ener-

getic Cleansing" and "Archangel Michael". When there was a shift change, she tried the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Uriel". The results were encouraging: the patients seemed more relaxed, with less pain and more sleep. The colleagues noticed there was less stress, they felt more relaxed and could cope with stress more easily. Without knowing the circumstances surrounding angel energies, more and more often they asked Astrid to use these "power sprays".

Astrid uses the angelic tools regularly and consistently for her private life and her job. Before a session, her clients choose an Angel Symbol and Angel Combi Symbol which Astrid works with afterwards. From her experience, Astrid has found some principles and rules:

The children's symbol no. 09 "Angel Dunael" for instance, often hints at a traumatic birth or problems at birth, such as caesarean.

Problems at the craniosacral therapy can be solved by the use of Angel Symbols or with the help of Aura-Essences.

Another case: Astrid's former superior in the hospital uses various angelic tools now. In team meetings she prefers the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Gabriel". In critical situations she lays an angel protection circle or uses the Angel Combi Essence no. 43 "Loriel" ("The Seven Helpers in Need"). Also in her private life she likes to use the Angel Symbols: helping to make decisions, in discussions, in the family or to energize drinking water.

Angelic remedies can also help animals: in one of her seminars there was a lady whose dog was suffering from a rash round its nose. Vets couldn't really help. During the angel meditations in the seminar the dog was extraordinarily quiet and still. After the two days' seminar, the rash was almost completely gone.

Recently Astrid made the decision to apply for a part time position in her former hospital. She wanted to brush up her nursing knowledge again. All the jobs in her former nursing ward were occupied. She took the Angel Symbol cards and drew the card no. 21 " Angel for Steadfastness and Fulfilment". On the same evening she got a phone call from a colleague: in her former team there was all of a sudden a vacancy. And of course, she accepted straight away.

Three years ago Astrid made a strange travelling experience. Together with friends she spent two weeks in Cuba, attending a dancing course there. Her and her best friend always had wonderful and clean hotel rooms – in contrast to the other members of their group who had to deal with vermin, broken installation and dirt. Astrid wanted to help them, so she used the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Cleansing" and "Archangel Michael". The vermin disappeared.

Before their journey back home, Astrid sprayed all the suitcases with the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Michael". There was only one man who laughed about these measures. Finally he checked in at the airport in Havanna just between Astrid and her best friend. All the suitcases arrived safely in Zurich with one exception: his landed in Madrid! Has Archangel Michael played a trick?

A young colleague of Astrid's had a bad accident where he broke his collarbone. A metal plate had to be inserted. Astrid tried to help him to get round this traumatic experience with the help of the angels and Wave Therapy. The day before the plate should have been removed, he came to Astrid for some angelic Wave Therapy. To top it all, he was suffering from hay fever.

At this moment the angels burst into action: spontaneously he drew the Angel Symbol card no. 03 "Angel for Peace and Light-Heartedness". (In the corresponding book "Energized Angel Sym-

bols" there is the paragraph with the physical assignment: shoulder area and allergies. Can this be a coincidence?)

The young man did not have any problems during the operation and afterwards. Surprisingly he was allowed to leave hospital on the same day. He was even capable of doing the shopping and cooking himself. He firmly believes now that angels exist who help us.

Angels in all situations in life

Eva Maria St., born in 1970, from Vienna, completed an EMA study (European Management Assistant). She started her career in the marketing area at an estate agent and later an investment, before she dared to become self-employed: as a trainer and coach for personal development, motivation training in teams, and one-to-one. At the same time she underwent further training as an energy practitioner and creative trainer. This was not purely by chance, because since her early childhood she had always been drawn to spirituality. "You can never have enough angels", her mother used to say.

There was an esoteric shop near Eva Maria's flat, full of interesting things: books, spices, decorations from Asia, and other far away countries. She sometimes just walked in to dive into this strange, and at the same time, attractive atmosphere, simply to look, browse through, smell but not always to purchase anything. One day, in the corner of the shop, she discovered Aura-Essences, which spread a strong energy and drew her there. She went closer to examine the bottles. She asked the assistant who didn't seem to know much about them. She only gave her a leaflet and recommended her just to take the one she felt most drawn to. Said, done. Eva Maria spontaneously grabbed the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Chamuel", without knowing what it should be good for. She just liked the scent, felt a good energy and her curiosity made her take the Angel Aura Essence and use it immediately, and the following days, to feel any effects.

What happened? Eva Maria felt surrounded by a very loving energy. At the same time she noticed how old and forgotten experiences, which had been painful at times, came up. They appeared to remind Eva Maria that they wanted to be solved and freed. Although she felt really agitated, shattered and sad, she felt a strong and deep protection and safety. One evening, she was just walking home from the theatre, passing the esoteric shop, when she saw an advertisement on the door, announcing a seminar with Ingrid Auer. As she had the desire to take part in this seminar, she enrolled some days later. Unfortunately, she found out that it was already booked out. Surprisingly one participant dropped out, and so Eva Maria could join. From this seminar derives not only a strong attraction to the angelic world, but also a close friendship with Ingrid Auer.

In the same year, Eva Maria attended two further seminars by Ingrid Auer. Her longing to try out and experiment with Angel Essences, Angel Symbol cards and Angel Combi Oils grew with every single experience and success. To give some more examples:

Once there were a few unpleasant arguments over an inheritance in her family. The case was protracted and the contradictory opinions wore the affected persons down. Eva Maria remembered the angel protection circles. She wrote down a possible fair outcome and put the sheet in the middle of a protection circle with Angel Cards. She was so glad to hear that the solution she had dreamt of had been agreed to. Finally all the family members were happy.

Eva Maria sometimes suffers from tensions and muscle aches around the shoulder and neck area. This is a well-known problem, not just in times of colds, but especially when there are stressful and mentally burdening times. Eva Maria found some help: she uses the Angel Combi Essences no. 01 "Lariel" in physical emergencies and no. 02 "Nanael" in mental emergencies. Furthermore

she sprays the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Raphael" on the painful spot, and puts the Angel Symbol "Raphael" under her pillow. After two nights she is usually free from pain.

As the trainer at, or participant in a seminar, Eva Maria sometimes feels the energies of the whole seminar group literally get stuck on her in the evening. So before she goes to bed, she uses the Angel Aura Essences, "Energetic Cleansing", and "Energetic Boundary". She feels fresh and clean again, and full of new energy. The exhaustion and stress are gone.

Several times clients have approached Eva Maria because their search for an ideal partner has not been successful. One client complained that her long-time partner is often abroad and he hesitates to marry and start a family. Eva Maria recommended writing a letter to the angels with sincere wishes and putting it into the centre of an angel protection circle. She also suggests combining the protection circle with crystals. Since then the results have always been positive. In the above mentioned situation the happy ending came after the third session: the man asked the client, after he had come home from a trip abroad, whether she wanted to marry him and move abroad! In her house she regularly sprays the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Gabriel". In the meantime she has become pregnant. (Editor's note: Archangel Gabriel's energy has already helped many childless couples to become parents.)

A good friend of Eva Maria's had been living abroad for some time and intended to come back to Vienna. She started to look for a quiet flat in the centre of Vienna. It should be an old flat with no previous tenants. There should be an open fire in the living room, and an open view from the kitchen. The bedroom should have a balcony, and the costs should be reasonable. In short, she wanted something impossible. Her friend put this wish down on a piece of paper and surrounded it with a protection circle with Angel Symbol

cards. The almost impossible happened! This friend now lives in a beautiful old flat in the fourth district of Vienna. The kitchen offers a wonderful view on the trees in the courtyard, the bedroom has a quiet balcony, in the living room there is an open fireplace, and the rent met her requirements. It sounds unbelievable, but that's the way it all happened.

Another animal report now: Eva Maria had a sweet Labrador dog that was more to her than a playmate. She was really dear to her heart. The dog just understood what Eva Maria felt and wanted. One day the animal got a heat rash and some time later became ill with cancer. Unfortunately the operation was not successful. Eva Maria who suffered, with the dog fighting for her life, treated the dog with the Angel Combi Oils no. 01 "Lariel" for physical emergencies, and no. 02 "Nanael" for emotional emergencies. She laid an angel protection circle with Angel Symbol cards under the dog's basket and sprayed the dog's aura with Angel Aura Essences. The animal could not be healed any more, but with the help of the Angel Combi Oils she did not need to suffer. Much to the vet's surprise, the dog did not feel any pain, even without the conventional drugs, and could die peacefully.

"Angels are like very best friends. They love you the way you are. They are always here for you, whenever you need them. And there is nothing you can't tell them. You may ask them for anything that is important to you. And if it is appropriate, they will fulfil your wishes."

With a lot of feeling and angelic power

Ruth O., born in 1948, from Gossau in Switzerland, comes from a working class family with many children. After school she trained as an office clerk. After some years she married and had two children, which made her concentrate on her double role as mother and housewife. As soon as her children were old enough, Ruth turned towards her own further education. She learned therapeutic massage, sports massage, and the coaching of sportsmen.

Ruth felt, from an early stage, that she might have undiscovered abilities, without knowing exactly what they were. During her search for her potential and her path, she attended esoteric seminars. At an event with Penny McLean in St.Gallen, she got in contact with the angelic world for the first time. Although she very much appreciated this area, this particular way of access did not appeal to her.

In the meantime, Ruth had opened her massage studio, and was successful, so that people were happy to recommend her. At the same time, she was team masseur to the Swiss national ski team for four years.

Although Ruth was offering different massages, she had the feeling that something was missing. "By accident" a friend invited her to come to an angel seminar with Ingrid Auer. This was just the thing that Ruth needed. She got to know the angels' energies and work, in a simple, natural, and pleasant way. She liked the talk, the meditations, and the aims and ideas behind them. Consequently,

Ruth attended two further seminars by Ingrid Auer, where she got to know all the angelic tools, step by step. Since then she has been using the symbols, essences and oils, both privately and in her job.

Some examples show the variety and efficiency of the energies, given by the angels. Ruth's husband is responsible for quality control and apprenticeship training in a company. One day he had a difficult discussion with his superior. He feared that his boss's opposite views would cause an unpleasant confrontation. So Ruth gave her husband the Angel Aura Essences "Energetic Cleansing" and "Energetic Boundary" before the talk. Although he was sceptical at the beginning, he was convinced by the efficiency. The discussion took place in a relaxed atmosphere. He could convince his superior of his point of view and carried through his ideas. To sum up: he was extremely successful. Ruth's husband changed his opinion on angels completely. Before difficult situations he often uses the Angel Aura Essence "Angel Meditation", which contains the energy of eight archangels.

One day a prominent lawyer with a large office and many employees, came to Ruth's studio. He emphasized it was the first time he had chosen such a way, not knowing if it was the right decision. The man, accustomed to success, all of a sudden was afraid of death: the doctors had diagnosed him with prostate cancer and urgently recommended an operation. Should he really do it and if yes, when and where? He did not believe in angels. Ruth dived mentally into his situation and connected with the angels, getting the advice to choose a certain hospital in the west of Austria. Later he found out that it was the town where his elder daughter was studying. Ruth gave him the Angel Aura Essence "Angel Meditation" and the Angel Combi Essence no. 43 "Loriel" (the Seven Helpers in Need) for all sorts of emergencies. The operation went very well and the patient has been healthy ever since. But Ruth was pleased about the biggest bunch of flowers she had ever got in her life. The man gave it to her to thank her for the support.

About three years ago a sports official who discovered her successful coaching of his team, told her about a tragic case of a young man in his neighbourhood. He was not even 20 years old, when he was diagnosed with a brain tumour, which had caused him to go blind and had affected his speech. Of course, Ruth did not have a cure for this. First of all, she wrote his name on a piece of paper and put an angel protection circle with the Archangel Symbols around it. She asked all the angels for their help and support, especially Archangel Gabriel, and the man's guardian angels, and called on them to watch the operation.

Five days after the operation, Ruth went to the hospital and was allowed to visit the man in intensive care. She heard that the next step was chemotherapy and radiotherapy. Ruth felt that, in his case, this was harmful, but unfortunately she could not convince the doctors. So she gave him the Angel Aura Essence "Sonael" and "Archangel Gabriel", telling him to spray it over his body every day.

Five days later Ruth got a phone call from the young man's desperate mother. He had had his first dose of chemotherapy, with awful results: he had an acute hearing loss and his eyesight, which was fine after the operation, had gone again. Ruth decided to go to the hospital immediately. She could go into his ward without any problems again and "by accident" she met the responsible doctor. The chemotherapy was stopped and the radiotherapy was not started. She had a wonderful talk to the doctor. He told her that during the operation he had the feeling somebody was watching him. Only Ruth knew who that could have been. By the way, the man recovered. He can talk, hear and see perfectly. In the meantime he has even passed his A-levels and is a member of a local orchestra.

Angels do wonderful things

Marlene D, born in 1957, from Aachen in Germany, is married with two grown-up sons. As a trained teacher, she has run a youth centre for 15 years and organized quite unusual social projects.

Here are two examples which particularly illustrate Marlene's creativity: a food service was set up for the unemployed, the young and students, which aimed to provide healthy food for kindergartens, schools and senior citizens. To raise the money for a self-defence course for girls, she persuaded smokers to reduce their consumption of nicotine and donate the money they had saved, for the girls' course.

During her work with young people, Marlene discovered other areas of interest: homeopathy, Bach flowers and astrology. She attended several courses and worked for a healing practitioner in pedagogical life counselling for children and teenagers.

It seemed like a coincidence – but we know that there is no such thing – when she noticed Ingrid Auer's book "Energized Angel Symbols" one day. While she was reading the book, she had the longing to get to know the author personally. She enrolled in the next seminar in Austria. Quickly she attended all the angel seminars. What fascinated her most? "All the other forms of therapy are not questioned at all. Additionally there is this ultimate trust in the power above, in yourself, and in truthfulness." From the cooperation with Ingrid Auer, a close friendship developed.

Her work is based on the tools the angelic world provides. Marlene says that "Angel energies are like steps leading to the Creator's energy. We have lost the ability to fly, but with light-work we will reach a level of spirituality that enables us to fly again easily." Marlene represents a new form of astrology, which she combines with Angel Symbols and Angel Essences. "Nothing is predetermined, because man can decide, but the ways are shown."

There follow some examples of her experiences: some time ago Marlene had problems with a wisdom tooth, which made her consult a dentist. She chose an astrologically ideal time for the treatment. The doctor, who trusted in Angel Essences and Angel Aura Essences, applied four remedies, but was still prepared for some complications. But to their surprise, the operation only took a few minutes and there were no bad after-effects: no bleeding, no swelling, no pains. There is no real explanation. Who would not believe in angelic help then?

Marlene's old father was sent to hospital in Aachen to have a bladder stone removed. At that time he was quite forgetful, following a cerebral hemorrhage two years ago. The operation went quite well, but on the same evening he had an epileptic stroke. He breathed in his own vomit, which made the doctors keep him in an artificial coma.

The doctors and nurses in intensive care were very cooperative. Marlene could visit her father as often and as long as she wanted to. During this time, she intensively worked with the Angel Symbol cards. Before every visit she drew three cards which she put on her father's chakras. Almost every time it was an Angel Symbol card and a card for solving karma and new beginning.

A visit to her father showed that a lot of emotions had been released. He was crying although he was in coma. She asked the

nurses if and how this could be possible. The nurses could not really believe it, but reluctantly came to his room to have a look. They were very surprised and said they had never seen anything like it. During the hard time in intensive care, Marlene could feel the angels' presence strongly. They were a great support to her.

After the stay in the hospital, her father suffered from partial amnesia, and hallucinations, for half a year. Also his character seemed to change. He persistently rejected any medical help. Even Marlene could hardly approach him. During a stay in a psychiatric clinic, Marlene strengthened him and herself with the Angel Aura Essences "Energetic Cleansing" and "Archangel Gabriel" every day. His condition improved, so that he could finally go home. His change in character remained though. One day, Marlene kept thinking of the Angel Combi Symbols no. 59 "Ismael" (care of dying).

She put the seven symbol on a photo of her father and waited curiously. Years ago Marlene's father authorized her to make decisions for him in case of a serious illness. After two days she noticed a slight change. Her father, who had given up interest in his environment, took part in a conversation. She could not believe this was all down to the use of the Angel Symbols.

Marlene waited for three more days and then she spoke to her husband and her brother about her father's condition and behaviour. They had also noticed the changes. Day after day his positive character was revealed again. Six weeks later he came back into his old life. He was still forgetful, but he had a happy and balanced life for another six years. He recognized his grandchildren again, read and discussed politics and was interested in what was going on around him. The doctors could not explain her father's change. They did not accept his daughter's explanation and smiled benevolently. Marlene's father died in May 2008. The Angel Combi Symbols no. 59 "Ismael" remained on his photo until his death.

Marlene had a particularly touching experience with a young girl. Kirsten was a healthy baby until she had a vaccination against measles, mumps and rubella. Petra R, Kirsten's mother, remembers, "24 hours after the vaccination, my daughter all of a sudden started to cramp. These fits came more and more often. I didn't realise then, what this illness meant for all of us. Nothing was the same any more. The whole family had to face the challenge. We suppressed, fled into alcohol, found comfort in too much food, ignored, ..."

Kirsten suffered from epileptic fits and grand mal seizures, which caused apnoea for up to two minutes, twitching movements, twisted eyes, etc. It was followed by absolute exhaustion. The horrendous thing was, that these fits came in a row, up to 17 within 24 hours. Luminal injections (a sleeping drug) interrupted the fits. Kirsten was suffering from enormous pain, when the needle penetrated her skin. It was just torture. One or two injections let Kirsten rest for a short time, usually three to four days. Then it started all over again.

Kirsten was in intensive care five times. Her longest stay in hospital was for eleven weeks. Her veins are full of scars from all the blood collections. The side effects of the drugs were total loss of hair, loss of weight (20%), growths on her gums. She even lost her speech for one and a half years. During that time doctors had tried out drugs in numerous combinations. The medical forecast for Kirsten's health was sad. Kirsten's health condition became worse and worse. The situation got more and more dramatic through the years.

Kirsten's mother also remarks, "I don't want to talk about our, and I emphasize our, suffering in detail. I still feel sick when I think of all the pain Kirsten had to experience during the stays in hospital. I saw my child suffer and I was powerless with anger and grief. I remember moments of deep sadness, hopelessness and questions about the meaning of life.

The encouraging thing for me was, that I never gave up asking for help: God, supernatural beings and people who helped us to get out of this tightness. We got help and support from a wonderful professor from Wiesbaden, who was always human, and from loving therapists and teachers.

The positive change came in May 2002. We discovered the angels with the help of the Angel Symbol cards by Ingrid Auer. At the same time we got to know a kinesiologist from Aachen, Marlene D. She worked with the Angel Symbol cards and Angel Essences in combination with kinesiologic treatment. Margit S. from Amstetten in Austria, about 800 km away from us, started to work on Kirsten energetically.

Kirsten had discovered her love for the angels at this time. She slept on the Angel Symbols "Archangel Raphael", "Archangel Michael" and "Archangel Chamuel". With her good night kiss she got the Angel Aura Essence "Angel Meditation". Sometimes she spontaneously decided, "Tonight Uriel is sleeping with me". Therefore this Angel Symbol card was put on her pillow. Kirsten put the Angel Essences in an order on her shelf and she liked working with them. She always knew what she needed at the time. She was not so keen on the Angel book for children. She preferred the symbols 1 - 49.

It is a miracle, but Kirsten has not had any more fits since March 2004. She can speak again and goes to school. With the help of Angel Essences, Angel Symbols and Angel Symbol cards she could be freed from her handicaps and pains. Today she is a cheerful girl who is part of her social environment.

Angel messages on the internet

Daniela H., born in 1966, from St. Johann in the Tyrol, first worked in a commercial job after taking her A-levels, at a commercial academy. After the birth of her first child she became interested in education and therefore she took part in a Montessori training. As she could not get her daughter into the English kindergarten, she founded the first German Montessori children's home in Vienna, together with her husband. She also held courses and seminars on Montessori education for parents and teachers. Now the mother of three works in her husband's company, with varying responsibilities.

Besides job and family, the power lady Daniela also finds time for her spiritual interests. She is a Reiki-Master, has attended courses in different alternative healing methods such as Omega Health Coaching, CQM (Chinese Quanta Method), Ayurveda, homeopathy, Bach flowers, kinesiology and astrology.

Her personal approach to the angelic world, is derived from an energetic sensitivity to certain colours, textiles and toiletries. Looking for certain products suitable for her, she found the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Michael" in a shop in Vienna. She spontaneously began to use it without knowing anything about it. She did just the same with the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Chamuel", with the effect that the allergies disappeared.

After this crucial experience, she wanted to attend one of Ingrid Auer's seminars as soon as possible. She phoned and could easily enrol, because one of the participants had dropped out. Quite quickly Daniela was able to attend the three training seminars.

One night she woke up and could clearly see all the connections in her life. Why she had learned and experienced certain things in her life. She had the feeling she was guided to the angelic world.

One morning, some time later, when she was still half asleep, she had the impulse to create a website. She kept thinking of this idea. A few days later, she had the clear image of the homepage in her mind. It should also include hints for Ingrid Auer's angel energies. With Ingrid Auer's consent, Daniela developed e-mail workshops where people could approach the angel symbols easily and make them part of their lives. It was Daniela's role to lead through meditations.

The basic idea for her workshops was to help people to practise the use of Angel Symbols in everyday life, in an easy way, without much time or effort. Her workshops are very popular. Every day one Angel Symbol after the other is dealt with and can be felt.

The participants developed the wish to get in contact with each other and exchange experiences. An internet-forum was the result, which is used by many people. Most of the participants see the angel-forum as an integral part of their daily lives, which only takes them a few minutes every day. They get to know new experiences, they can talk about their own results and they can remain anonymous if they want: an ideal approach for the curious, the cautious and newcomers.

Daniela's experience has been that almost everyone who has been in contact, wants to stay in touch, and does not want to miss the workshops and forums.

Some examples of topics from her exchange of experiences:

- _ energetic support for important talks
- _ cutting circles, to let go of patterns and bonds
- _ energetic cleansing of rooms
- energizing drinking water and bathing water
- _ energizing and energetic cleansing of food
- radiation protection while using computers, laptops, mobile phones and TVs
- _ improving concentration in job and school
- _ energetic prevention against illnesses
- _ Angel Symbols' protection circles
- _ dealing with unpleasant habits

Of course, Daniela also uses the possibilities for herself. She lets her family decide whether they want to accept the angelic tools or not: her daughter more or less refuses it, her older one sometimes uses it, whereas her younger son actively and successfully works with the Angel Symbols and Angel Essences. Her husband appreciates her support in private and business matters. Friends and relations have to ask her for help, otherwise she only "helps" when the circumstances allow it.

A special case is to be mentioned now: one day a friend contacted Daniela, because she had heard Daniela had an "access to angels". She told her about her grandmother who had been at death's door for weeks and her mother who was afraid of losing her. The situation was almost unbearable for everyone. Daniela laid an Angel protection circle with the Angel Symbols, to allow the dying a quiet and peaceful parting. The following night the grandmother peacefully passed away. The relatives felt safe and guided in their letting go and they could bear their grief more easily. There are two more similar cases where Daniela was able to help.

Physiotherapy and angel energies

Andreas G., born in 1959, from Altona near Hamburg, is looking back on a quite unusual personal development: After Grammar School he started to study Protestant Theology, but gave it up, converted to Buddhism, and studied Buddhist philosophy and psychology.

His professional career is also an unusual one: he is both a physiotherapist, and biodynamic therapist trained in craniosacral therapy and osteopathy. He worked at a doctor's surgery to gain experience, before he started his own practice. He is in permanent contact with doctors. He is trying to integrate his personal aims with life in his daily job: inner peace, careful handling of his awareness and a good contact with his body.

After some strokes of fate, he fell into a deep crisis which had drastic mental and physical effects. In this emergency situation he was desperately looking for some help from above, when "by accident" he happened to come across the angels symbols by Ingrid Auer. He was sure to feel some special energy in them, so he bought the book with the set of cards. He started to work intensively with the symbol cards every day. Soon he could feel their healing effects himself. A strong backache made him choose three angel symbols spontaneously. Every day he put them on his heart, solar plexus and abdomen. Within a few days the painful blockages around his spine and the intestines vanished without any medicine. No more lumbago. Andreas describes the feeling as if the affected parts of the body had dissolved. It all happened in 2006 and now there are no more such problems.

These experiences moved him to work on the angel symbols more intensively. First he visited a seminar on Guardian Angels where he got to know Marlene Damblon. She distributed Ingrid Auer's tools from the angelic world in Germany. The meeting encouraged him to attend two seminars on Angel Transformation Symbols and Angel Combi Symbols. There he learned how to apply the oils and essences.

As Andreas was so convinced about the efficiency of these tools, it was time for him to offer them to the people he was treating. Below two different, but very impressive examples from his wealth of experience.

Some time ago a lady came to his consulting rooms. Her dentist had found out that her pains were down to an allergy to the filling material of her teeth. A case for the dentist or a therapist? Andreas could feel that the Angel Essence "Archangel Raphael" would be helpful. He recommended the lady to rinse her mouth regularly with the essence and also to swallow it. Since the beginning of the treatment the condition gradually improved. The patient does not need any medicine now.

Also in a second similar case, Andreas could help with his work and the angelic tools. (The patient has made copies of her personal diary of the "angel treatment" and the medical reports available for the authors).

A patient was complaining about pains in the shoulder she had been suffering from for some time. After carrying a heavy item, her condition got so bad, that she could not lift her arm any more and the pains became unbearable. She had to go to the emergency room of the hospital. The reports showed that the shoulder joint was calcified and tendon rupture made it even worse. An operation seemed to be unavoidable.

The lady had already laid an angel protection circle with the Archangel cards and the Master symbol "Kwan Yin", when she came to see Andreas one morning. He tried to help her using the Angel Symbol no. 44 "Archangel Chamuel" during the treatment. He concentrated on the topic of accepting love. Andreas felt that behind her problem might be a blockage from her childhood. Therefore he recommended her to work with the Angel Combi Symbol no. 03 "Hariel" at home and stick the Angel Symbol "Guardian Angel" on the shoulder. Additionally he tested the Angel Combi Oils no. 01 "Lariel" and no. 02 "Nanael" to use them for massages at home. She also used an affirmation every day. On the evening of the same day she could lift her arm a little bit for the first time again.

After three more days she could hold a knife and fork again. And then again three days later, after a treatment at Andreas's, she could lift her arm over her head. During this treatment she recognized that the emotional background and root of her problem was to be found in her childhood. On the evening of the same day she spontaneously, without thinking, opened a cupboard above her head.

To deal with more of the problems from her childhood she started to work on her inner child with the help of the "Angel Symbols for Children". After nine more days she was completely without pain and went for her next check-up confidently.

The doctors were surprised to see that the calcification was completely gone within 21 days and the injured tendon was also healed. As they could not really explain the miraculous recovery, they recommended further physiotherapy treatment to stabilize the new freedom of movement.

Nobody, not even Andreas can find a plausible explanation for the described processes. He only makes reference to his sense of basic trust in the power of the angels which encourages him to continue on his path. For his personal problems he likes to use the power of the Master-Aura-Essences "St. Germain", "Lady Rowena" and "Lady Nada". With tension and excitement he is looking forward to further results of his work.

Angels love lightness

Brigitte H., born in 1963, from Basel, has been working as an independent artist for years. She has her own therapy rooms for energetic consulting. In her treatments she has heled a lot of people find answers to life's questions concerning partnership, school, job and health. Her work is developing daily because the spiritual world is full of impulses.

Brigitte's introduction to Ingrid Auer's angel energies happened during a visit to a bookshop. She was looking for powerful texts when by chance she read a meditation from the set "Energized Angel Symbols 1-49". As she had found the power she had been looking for, she was at first not interested in the set of cards that accompanies the book. At home she discovered the meaning of the cards. She had hardly taken the cards in her hand, when a warm feeling ran through her body, which disturbed her. She put one card on her chest which made her knee tingle. At a channelling she wanted to get proof about the authenticity of the cards. She then decided she wanted to get to know Ingrid Auer personally. She enrolled at a seminar where she found the meditations extremely comforting. She felt the lightness and authenticity of the angel energies. Straightaway she bought a lot of these tools, which the angelic world had offered through Ingrid Auer, as she was convinced of their strong effect. Additionally she did some training to become a medium. Step by step she left biographical work, which she had done previously with great effort. She introduced angel energies into her practice. Her clients choose the symbol cards and then she works with them on the background topics and blockages.

To begin with, she only tried the Angel Essences in all various combinations on herself. She used them in her Sound Pyramids. The Amneely-Sound Pyramid, recreated to an old Atlantic healing instrument, is made of energized glass. It produces sounds, whose vibrations have a direct effect on the cellular fluid. Now Brigitte offers her clients this combination of Angel Essences and Sound Pyramid. The aura is filled, blockages are solved. Some clients can feel what is happening to them. They feel grounded or describe it as: "having arrived in the body again."

Brigitte disclosed some more examples of her experiences: an introductory experience into energetic work was provided by a friend of hers. She phoned Brigitte, telling her that her husband had just been taken to hospital with a heart attack. She asked Brigitte to support her husband with the help of the Sound Pyramid. She got a clear message from the angelic world that it was not a heart attack. The heart chakra was simply opening strongly which was, in this case, a painful process. Brigitte told her friend who was extremely relieved. Brigitte energetically supported the family in the following weeks. Also, the daughter of the family could feel the positive effects when she said, "Brigitte is sending us all the angels!" The examinations went on for weeks and the doctors seemed to be confronted with a mystery. It was certainly no heart attack, although the signs were there. Brigitte's friend felt, supported by the angels, as steady as a rock. Her friends were stumped for words. And her husband's heart continues to beat strongly and healthily.

A six-year-old boy grew up in the mountains. He had a strange fear of helicopters. The noise of the approaching engines and, even more, the sight, frightened him so much that he always tried to hide. When he was outside he was looking for somewhere to hide and in the house he covered himself with a blanket. Trying to

comfort was of no use. Helicopters seemed to be life-threatening to him. It was clear for Brigitte: this boy was remembering his former life, during the war? These memories seemed to be so strong that they reached into his present life. With the help of a cutting circle with the Angel Symbol cards and one-to-one consulting his fears could be solved. Archangel Michael was an important help for him.

Another success with a cutting circle: a teacher had problems to distance herself from the mother of one of her pupils. She blamed her for the problems at school and tried again and again to shrug off responsibility onto her. After an angel cutting circle had been laid, there were positive changes in the next talk between mother and teacher. From that time on the mother stopped blaming the teacher.

Cutting circles also showed positive effects in new beginnings, for instance, the changing of jobs. Through a cutting circle with the Angel Symbol cards a client became aware of unsolved topics which his employer mirrored him. They could be solved and there was room for a new beginning.

The mother of a teenage son came to Brigitte, because she thought her son had problems finding a job. A cutting circle with the help of the Angel Symbol cards showed the woman her own personal topic which had indirectly blocked her son. At her next session with Brigitte she told her how easily her son had found an apprenticeship.

Brigitte often notices deep anxieties in children because they clearly remember former lives with their inherent dangers. She came across a boy who was allergic to many different foods. Rashes were a permanent problem. The mother tried all sorts of things to help him. Talking to Brigitte the background topic came out clearly. For the boy, the world with all its new things seemed

to be dangerous and life-threatening – even food. Brigitte laid a protection circle with the help of some Angel Combi Symbols and the boy's photo. She put the symbol "Guardian Angel" into the middle of the circle. The effects of the protection circle felt as if the boy was born again, this time protected and strong. Brigitte told the mother to show the boy the beauties of the world as clearly as possible. After two more treatments the allergies got less, except a little intolerance to nuts. With the Angel Combi Oils his skin redness could be successfully treated. Mother and son are convinced about the angelic help and want to involve the Guardian Angels in all the problems to come.

Allergies are a topic of interest, which can be successfully solved with the Anel-Combi-Symbols no. 10 "Nithael" and the Angel Combi Symbols no. 02 "Nanael". One day a farmers' daughter came to Brigitte's practice because of hay fever. After the background topic had been recognized, Brigitte started the appropriate treatment. Brigitte could feel how sceptical her young client was, but she continued doing what the angels told her. When the girl came home she was sure the treatment had been no success. On the same day, she helped bringing the hay in. Much to her surprise, for the first time there were no allergic reactions.

Brigitte explains allergies amongst young people like: young people are very sensitive, so that they soak up all the impressions from outside in great detail. At the same time, they often withdraw. Once their capacity of taking on things has reached a certain point, they start to react: their eyes water, the nose runs,... All these are signs that they are beyond their limits. According to Brigitte's experience the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Boundary" offers great help.

One day, a woman, 27 weeks pregnant, visited Brigitte. She had already given birth to two children and had been diagnosed "pla-

centa praevia". This means that part of the placenta was placed above the uterine orifice. The doctors were convinced a caesarean would be unavoidable. The woman saw it as a hint that she should consciously take more time for herself, and the unborn child. Therefore, she had regular massages and treatments at Brigitte's, to offer her child a good start in life. After the treatment, she took the Angel Combi Oil no. 03 "Hariel" and an energized Angel Symbol candle, home for birth. In the 36th week of her pregnancy she had an appointment at her doctor's who wanted to discuss the caesarean with her. She made an ultrasound scan and was amazed to find words; everything was in perfect position. She gave birth in a natural way and without complications. Supported by an angel protection circle and the Sound Pyramid the child was born at home.

One day Brigitte was asked to come to a renovated house. She noticed that in two rooms there was a heavy energy of sadness. She found out that it had been the bedroom, and death chamber, of the former owner. The rooms were sprayed with the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Cleansing" for several days, until the burdening energies disappeared at last.

One day Brigitte got a hint from the angelic world to make family constellations with the help of the "Angel Essences 1-49". The bottles the clients choose and the position where they put them, clearly show current problems and tensions within the family. Brigitte makes the clients change the position of the bottles until there is a feeling of harmony. Every bottle supports the person it stands for.

This completely new form of family constellation has the great advantage that the people involved are protected through the angel energies. In this way they cannot absorb any emotional, mental and karmic burdens from other people into their morphogenetic field, their aura and chakras. It strengthens the whole system within the family. According to feedback, this new approach has also strong and lasting effects.

From a natural doctor's practice

Verena B., born in 1945 from Gossau in the Swiss canton of St. Gallen, had to take on responsibility for her parents' farm at an early age, because of her mother's death. There was no time to train for a job. She took on the role of housewife, and mother, of quite a big family.

She went for massage after a knee problem, where the masseuse recognized her special talent for massage. She encouraged her to follow her interest in the health area. Verena underwent several courses in massage and attended a school for natural doctors where she acquired vast knowledge about dietetics.

One day she came across Ingrid Auer's book "Energized Angel Symbols" in an esoteric shop. She felt drawn to it, and therefore started to work with it. She took the earliest opportunity to attend a course in Switzerland to get to know Ingrid Auer personally. Since then she has been a convinced follower and user of the tools from the angelic world. She uses the Angel Symbol cards, Angel Essences and Combi-Oils daily in her family, to get answers to private questions and problems. She also uses Angel Aura Essences on a regular basis for cleansing and boundary, the Angel-Rescue-Drops, and the Angel Combi Essence no. 43 "Loriel" ("The 7 Helpers in Need") with sleeping problems. Step by step, Verena also started to use her knowledge of the symbols, essences and oils for the clients in her pracitce.

At a trade fair in Basel she worked on Ingrid Auer's stand. As somebody offered aura photos, Verena wanted to make some personal tests. She found out that the Angel Aura Essences "Archangel Raphael", "Archangel Chamuel" and "Archangel Michael" lead to a significant change in the aura. Her energy blockage was noticeably reduced. These aura photos encouraged Verena even more concerning the effects of the angelic tools.

After foot massage with the Angel Aura Essence, "Archangel Raphael", Verena has not only noticed a considerable relief from the original pain, but she has also seen that, after dealing with an unpleasant topic, a soft shower was flowing through the body. When talking about nice and joyful topics her clients felt a tingling and comfortable warmth.

Verena's help is often required by clients with birth traumas, after difficult deliveries, after caesareans or problems with screaming babies. She successfully combines her craniosacral therapy with the Angel Aura Essence "Norael". She has also obtained good results with the Angel Combi Oils for babies. Wounds and scars heal more quickly, newborns are gently soothed and sleeping disorders can be dealt with.

With babies and infants Verena likes to use the "Angel Symbols for Children". The mother chooses them and puts them on the child's body. For family matters protection circles with the Angel Symbol cards have gained good results. She tells parents to use the Angel-Children's-Rescue-Oil (Angel Combi Oil no. 03 "Hariel") at home for massages. Verena has also noticed that children with sleeping disorders ask for the Angel Aura Essences and Angel Combi Oils. They can feel the comforting effect and the freeing from all sorts of fears.

One day, a mother appeared in Verena's practice with her six months old son. After a difficult birth he began to suffer from breathing problems. He had to be taken to a children's hospital several times. There they were unable to make a specific diagnosis. Verena treated him with the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Michael" and "Norael", and with two specific Angel Combi Oils for massages. Already after the first session, the shortness of breath was gone. The mother was given Angel.-Combi-Oils and Angel Aura Essences for further treatment of the baby at home: since then the baby sleeps regularly, quietly and calmly. The breathing problems are completely gone.

Verena remembers a similar case of a premature baby: ten weeks after birth some parents came into her practice with a screaming baby who was blue from shortness of breath, into her practice. After a loving massage the baby became quiet, looked around curiously, and started to smile. Verena gave the parents the oils for home treatment. She got a phone call a few days later saying that the child was already sleeping quietly, was hardly crying, and reacting in a lively way to his environment.

There are many more similar experiences of success that Verena could talk about. At this point it needs to be mentioned that Verena has a special, motherly approach to small children.

For clients who are afraid of operations or anaesthesia, Verena recommends the Angel Combi Essence no. 32 "Sorihael". Verena knows from experience that panics get less, and necessary treatments can be done with calmness and composure.

A client who had to undergo a serious abdominal operation went for a Reiki treatment. Her therapist, who could see the aura, felt that it was very weak. Verena recommended that she ask the angels for help and to lay a protection circle. One week later the client came back again, telling her that she felt much better. The Reiki practitioner could also notice an improvement of the aura.

One day the daughter of an old lady came to her saying that her

mother wanted to be released from all her pains and wanted to die. The problem was that she could not let go. Verena recommended that seh spray the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Zadkiel" in the mother's bedroom and to put it on her hands. On the same day, the old lady could die in peace without pain.

The internet gradually gains more and more influence in dealing with clients. In this connection, one incident deserves to be mentioned. A woman had got detailed information on Angel Combi Symbols and other angelic tools on the internet. After switching off the computer, she twice saw two symbols on the dark screen. She could not find any technical explanation, but she decided to buy those two symbols. After some time she contacted Verena telling her that she had successfully worked with these two symbols in her family. Her small son always takes the symbols to school when he has a test. Since then he has had much better results. No more fear of exams. Her husband who had had problems with his bosses and fears related to his job, has managed to overcome his problems since then and has even achieved a better working atmosphere.

Verena had a similar experience with the branch manageress of a shoe shop. She had problems with her employees and was suffering from mobbing. She started to spray the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Michael" in the shop. The tensions with the employees became gradually less. Even clients commented on the pleasant atmosphere in the shop.

There was another client who complained about a tense situation at her workplace and awkward confrontations with her boss. Verena recommended putting a symbol of Archangel Michael under the keyboard and spraying the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Michael" in the office. Since then there hasn't been any more sharp comments from the boss and his aggression has diminished.

The mother of a school child poured her heart out to Verena: her son was put into a new class with new teachers, and he could hardly cope with the tensions there. Verena recommended her laying protection circles with the Angel Symbol cards for the whole class. The tensions between teachers and pupils got less within a few days, and the child has not got any more problems to go to school.

After a death in the family, another client was forced to sell their shop. Banks and creditors were pushing her. Verena also recommended a protection circle of Angel Symbol cards. After five weeks she rang to tell Verena that the banks had found a solvent buyer. All her problems could be solved to her satisfaction.

A young marriage seemed to be falling apart: the man was suffering from mobbing at his work place and saw no other escape than alcohol. His wife, on the other hand, was becoming guite successful in her job. Verena recommended an Angel-Protection circle to get some help from above. After some weeks the man really stopped soaking his problems in alcohol. His boss even promoted him. He felt accepted again, which made him cope with his wife's career. Their relationship has become okay again.

Verena also has positive examples for the effects of Ingrid Auer's meditation CDs. Both adults and children with sleeping disorders could get to sleep easily after listening to the CDs. Even animals respond to the CDs: a sick dog was whining miserably so that the vet was just about to put him down. After listening to the CD, "Healing meditation with Archangel Raphael" it was able to recover.

Some time ago, a spectacular child abduction took place in Switzerland. This crime horrified and upset many people. Afterwards several parents came with their sensitive and scared children to Verena. After some discussion she sprayed the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Gabriel" and "Archangel Michael" into the children's

aura. The children could be freed from their fears on their way to school, in playgrounds and in the kindergarten. One interesting fact: girls responded more to the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Gabriel" whereas boys reacted positively to the Aura-Essence "Archangel Michael".

Once a seven year old girl talked about a strange dream she had had: she saw her own incarnation and a second baby, a boy. They both had decided to come down to earth. They seemed to go down a never-ending slide. During the slide the girl saw that the boy had problems. He could not hold on well enough and dropped back. In the end, he gave up and dropped out. Verena recognized the topic behind this dream: two souls had decided to come to the same parents at the same time, but one of them had changed his mind. Verena wanted to help the girl to reduce her fears and shyness. She offered her reflexology with an Angel Combi Oil. Although she thought the one suitable oil might be the Angel Combi Oil no. 35 "Aliel", she wanted to try out and test what decision the child would make. She offered her a choice of five oils. What happened? Without hesitation the girl chose the Angel Combi Oil no. 35 "Aliel". Verena gave the parents the oil for home use. Two months later the girl came to Verena again: grounded, guiet and with a very confident appearance.

One day a lady came complaining about pains in her chest which she had been having for weeks. The doctors could not make any satisfactory diagnosis and painkillers didn't work. During the consultation Verena revealed she had lost a baby some years ago. Verena massaged the lady on the chest and feet with the Angel Combi Oil no. 35 "Aliel". After only a short time the mental blockages were solved, followed by a stream of tears. The pains stopped gradually. Verena gave the lady the oil so that she could continue the massages at home. After a few weeks the client got back to her telling her with great relief that she was free from pain.

Nothing but coincidences? Nothing but imagination? I hardly think so! Verena is happy about her daily successes with the tools from the angelic world.

Letters from near and far

Almost every day we find requests, suggestions and wishes in our electronic mailbox. But there are also letters concerning the surprising effects of the tools from the angelic world, impressive experiences and success stories.

We have chosen a small number of these reports, because they are either touching or dramatic for the people involved. We think there might be some important necessary hints for other people's daily work and life issues. To respect the privacy of those concerned we only give first names and initials of the surname and the countries they come from.

We are happy to get brief details on anything new you discover.

Anna Maria W. from Austria reports on her positive experiences in connection with the energetic interference of caccines:

When her daughter was born, seven years ago, the baby was vaccinated. Subsequently, her arm became swollen, causing her to cry for hours on end. She became unsettled and hardly able to sleep. In a word: she was completely unbalanced. She showed the same reactions after a second and third vaccination. Going for her fourth vaccination, Anna Maria had the Angel Symbol card no. 04 "Purity and Clarity" in her pocket. As the doctor, her brother, was sceptical concerning the effect of angel cards, she was relieved

when she was left alone in his treatment room for some time. The injection had already been prepared, and was lying on the table in front of her. Anna Maria took the chance to slip the angel card under the suringe. Her brother was completely unaware of this when he vaccinated his niece. Lo and behold: the girl had neither a swollen arm, nor pains – she was cheerful and slept without any problems the following night. Three further vaccinations revealed the same effect. Since then her daughter has never reacted badly to vaccinations.

Andrea F. from Switzerland dealt with the following dog problem some time ago:

Two puppies had been unusually nervous, shy and unsettled since their birth. They got stronger and bigger, but whenever they heard loud noises (for instance fireworks), they were petrified. Andrea started an extraordinary treatment: she wanted to solve the problem with an angel meditation, with an Angel Essence, and the Angel Symbol of "Archangel Michael". She was eagerly waiting for any changes in her dogs' behaviour. Before the next fireworks, her dogs had fallen asleep. They were lying in their basket on the Angel Symbol and on the bottle of an Angel Aura Essence. As soon as the noise started, they woke up and ran outside curiously. There was no more fear, they only wanted to watch the fireworks!

Silvia D. from Austria talked about two dramatic cases and how the angels helped immediately.

A 48-year-old man, a friend of her family, was suddenly developed intestinal bleeding. His GP sent him to the nearest hospital immediately. Silvia and her husband tried to send him Reiki-energies, asked the angels for help, and put the Angel Aura

Essence "Archangel Raphael" on the letter of referral, for two days. Then the patient underwent a colonic irrigation and gastroscopy. The results were negative, the doctors were faced with a mystery and sent him home. Silvia was delighted about how wonderfully and quickly angels can help.

Silvia, who has been working with Angel Symbol cards, Angel Essences and Angel Symbol protection circles for years, has gone through a financial crisis recently and was declared bankrupt. In desperation, she contacted the angels for help and support. It was almost frightening, but nevertheless exhilarating, the way they helped: the petition for bankruptcy was halted by the judge within three minutes. There was no proof of her insolvency. Almost at once Silvia and her husband found somebody to rent their shop who could even offer them additional work. Their problems had been quickly solved.

The following reports come from Sabine H., a German midwife:

A 34-year-old client who was pregnant had already undergone four abortions and three miscarriages. She was suffering because she feared that her miscarriages were some sort of punishment for her abortions. Sabine recommended that she take the Angel Combi Essence no. 35 "Aliel" for four weeks, and lay a large Angel Symbol protection circle for her and her baby. In addition she should massage the Angel Combi Oil no. 17 "Muriel" during the whole pregnancy. She also used the Angel Aura Essences "Archangel Gabriel", "Archangel Michael" and "Archangel Zadkiel". She gave birth to her daughter after the 41st week of pregnancy without any problems.

Unfortunately the births are not always happy experiences. The doctors had to recommend an abortion to mother of four, because the baby was expected to be seriously handicapped. The mother decided to go ahead with the birth of the child. Sabine recommended listening to Ingrid Auer's CD "Angels accompany through pregnancy and birth". Immediately after birth the father massaged the baby gently with the Angel Combi Oil no. 03 "Hariel" and sprayed it with the Angel Aura Essence "Norael". The Angel Combi Symbols no. 59 "Ismael" were put round the navel. The parents took the Angel Combi Essence no. 43 "Loriel" ("The 7 Helpers in Need") and no. 59 "Ismael". After five hours the baby passed away peacefully in the arms of its parents, apparently without pain. The parents could say goodbye in dignity.

Carmen St., from Switzerland, is a trained children's nurse. In the last few years she has specialized in baby massage. She told us about the following experience:

The pregnancy and birth of a little boy had brought complications. When his mother contacted Carmen, he was hardly able to be left alone. He always needed adults around and clung to his mother. With the help of the Angel Combi Oil no. 03 "Hariel", he became more and more independent and self-confident.

A mother came to Carmen's practice with a five week-old baby. It was suffering from sleeping disorders, was restless and breast-feeding didn't really work. Carmen recommended the Angel Combi Oil no. 26 "Norael" for regular massages. Today the family is delighted about the change in the child. It has turned into a quiet and content baby and there are no problems with breast-feeding at all.

Gunda U. from Austria tried out the effects of the Angel Symbols in connection with her microwave. She put the Angel Symbol card no. 05 "Angel for Power and Strength" under the plate after she had warmed the food. Afterwards she tested with a pendulum whether the food had lost some of its energy. It hadn't. She noticed similar effects with clothes containing man-made fibres. After she had put the ironed clothes on the Angel Symbol card no. 05 "Angel for Power and Strength" she could detect no electrostatic charge (also when she put these clothes on). Incidentally, angels love to be tried out in a playful way.

Ingrid L. from Germany, has tried out the Angel Transformation Essence no. 02 "Angel for Subtle Regeneration" and the appropriate Angel Symbol n. 02. She explains that since then she has been guided in an incredibly soft and loving way. Immediately after putting the card with the Angel Symbol on her body, she can feel its energy. She can avoid headaches and taking tablets. She can also fight off colds with it. She only feels slightly under the weather.

Simone B, from Switzerland, has sent us three reports about her experiences with the "Angel Symbols for Children":

She had arranged a children's party on the day of her daughter's birthday. But, surprisingly, the girl did not want to hear about it, and started to scream and rage. She did not want to see her friends. Simone was helpless. Coming into the kitchen, she saw the Children's-Angel Symbol no. 08 "Obiel" (Angel message: "Everything will be alright") lying in front of her. She took it and secretly put it into her daughter's pocket. The girl was transformed. She put on her shoes, went to the car, got in and started to talk. All of a sudden, she was looking forward to the party, and the children who wanted to play with her. Simone could not find a plausible explanation for the sudden change of mind. Obiel seemed to have helped.

A little boy who was also invited to the party, never stayed any-

where without his mother. Also this time she accompanied him and brought a chocolate cake to justify her presence. When she was baking the cake, she had an unusual idea. She stuck the Children's-Angel Symbol no. 10 "Midael" (Angel message: "You are okay!") on the bottom of the cake. Her son, who never let her out of sight, accepted it when she said she had to leave him alone to get something. When she came back after a few hours, her son did not want to come home with her. He wanted to play with the children for a longer time. Back home, he proudly said, "I stayed there on my own, without Mummy." Thanks to Angel Midael.

Simone always takes the Children's Angel Symbols with her to the kindergarten where she works. In the playgroup she had a boy who always stood on the side watching the other children. He did not want to play with them, nor did he do something on his own. Simone let the children draw symbols. He got the Angel no. 18 "Osiel" ("You are okay!"). She watched him put the symbol card in his trouser pocket. Shortly afterwards he started to play with dolls and other toys. All of a sudden he also let other children join him. From this moment on he was a changed character. Now he likes playing with other children, is communicative, and obviously feels good.

Christine F, from Austria, talks about an experience which can happen in the household: she burnt herself on a hot cooker. By chance, there was the Angel Essence "Archangel Michael" was nearby. She quickly put some drops on the wound, which made the pain disappear at once. After some time a blister developed. But it healed quickly and without pain.

Renate P. from Switzerland, has a good friend who had attended angel seminars with her. Every now and then they exchange their experiences on angel energies. Her friend told her that she had been quite successful with clients that wanted to stop smoking. She recommended the Angel Symbols no. 06 "Angel for

Power and Strength" and no. 48 "Archangel Zadkiel". She should wear them as close to her body as possible. Four people who had done this, have not smoked since then.

Walter Sch. from Austria, has told us about the following two incidents:

He was given a hepatitis vaccination in preparation for a journey abroad. After the first dose, he felt slight pains around the puncture mark caused by the injection, which was normal according to the doctor. One month later he had his second dose. He put the vaccine on his personal angel symbol for 15 minutes, as he did not have the Angel Symbol no. 04 "Purity and Clarity" with him. He wanted to try out if the symbol would cause any difference to the first reaction. The result was amazing: there were not any unpleasant side effects at all.

On the palm of his hand he got a blister after working with a brush and screwdriver. It was followed by a burning pain. As he could not continue his work, he stopped for a while and rubbed the Angel Transformation Oil no. O2 "Subtle Regeneration" on the spot. Much to his surprise the blister got smaller after a few minutes, the reddening of the skin and the pain disappeared. He could continue and finish his work quite quickly.

Ing. Thomas K. from Austria, runs a building company. He tells us about his experiences with the angels:

Following a sudden pain, he did not want to go to the doctor's, but wanted to treat it with the symbol of Archangel Raphael. First, he put the symbol on the painful spot, which did not really make any difference. Also his experiences in acupuncture did not help him. Then he decided to put the angel symbol on the painful

spot over night. The next morning the pain was gone. "Thanks to the angels", Thomas wrote. This experience boosted his keenness to experiment. In the meantime he has dealt with some allergies as well.

Nicole S. from the Netherlands, talks about her experiences as a teacher and supervisor in her school:

She works with children aged between two and a half and twelve. She kept feeling burdening energies in the rooms which hindered the children's progress. They were irritated, not willing to learn, not concentrated and listless. After a few attempts, it has turned into a habit, that Nicole sprays the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Cleansing" in the classrooms. This causes a considerable improvement in the working atmosphere of all the people involved. Even colleagues have spontaneously commented on the pleasant atmosphere in Nicole's classrooms. One of them exclaimed, "What's the matter in here? I feel such a strong energy in this room!"

One day Nicole had to look after an autistic child, who was completely inward-looking and did not speak a word. After Nicole had sprayed the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Cleansing" in the room, the child reacted and started to speak for the first time. When her colleague heard about this, she became excited.

Thomas B. from Switzerland, sent us his feedback as a user of a special kind:

As a singer, his voice is his most precious instrument which he protects and looks after. He praised the Angel Aura Essence "Sonael", which had proved outstanding during a singing week with high ozone levels. A very unusual and interesting experience concerning the help of angel energies.

The following reports come from Rita F, in Switzerland:

During an angel seminar Rita got to know about the Angel Aura Essences. A client came to her who complained about his momentary nodding off while driving his car. She recommended spraying two Angel Aura Essences in the car. He politely thanked her and smiled disparagingly, because he did not really believe in the effect of this treatment. After a few weeks he phoned her, telling her that he had not had any more momentary nodding-offs since the use of the essences.

Another case: a client's husband went bankrupt. The worries and fears caused personal conflicts between the couple, leading to a divorce. The woman, (who worked as an employee), became addicted to alcohol and consequently lost her job. Rita made her client draw angel cards and explained to her the positive message of the angel symbols to raise her spirits. Additionally she gave her the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Jophiel" to spray her aura and her rooms. After some time the woman got rid of her alcohol problem and found a suitable job again.

Claudia B from Germany sent us three very different reports:

After Claudia had attended one of Ingrid Auer's talks, she bought the book "Angels accompany through pregnancy, birth and the time afterwards" for her daughter-in-law, who was expecting a baby. She also bought the Angel Aura Essence "Norael", although she had initial doubts about its efficiency and she did not know her daughter-in-law's attitude towards angels.

The expectant mother used the Angel Aura Essence "Norael" regularly during the eighth and ninth months of pregnancy. She also used "Archangel Michael" and some Combi-Oils. She gave birth without any problems. Since then the young mother has been recommending the angelic tools to her friends and relations.

After her daughter-in-law had given birth, the new grandmother made the following experience: Whenever the granddaughter became restless, she sprayed the Angel Aura Essence "Norael" over her bed. The child reacted immediately and became quiet and balanced again.

In the same room there was a woman who had given birth to a boy. He was extremely restless and loud. When the mother left the ward for a short time, Claudia sprayed the same Angel Aura Essence over him. And he also calmed down immediately. When the mother came back, she put the change down to Claudia's soothing aura.

Claudia experienced the same effect with this Angel Aura Essence on a child who was born by caesarean.

After a few months Claudia's granddaughter could take part in baby gymnastics. To begin with she liked it, but sometimes she lost interest and got restless. Then Claudia applied the Angel Aura Essence which always helped the baby to become balanced and happy again.

One of Claudia's clients is branch manageress of a drugstore chain which was well-known for its high rate of shoplifting. Claudia recommended that she spray the shop with the Angel Aura Essence "Energetic Cleansing" and "Energetic Boundary" every day. Recently her boss visited her on business. He praised her because her branch had the lowest crime rate, an especially good atmosphere

and he himself felt personally good there. He said he did not feel any stress there and he could almost renew his energies. Even the annual checks on the entire inventory could be managed more quickly than in the other branches! The manageress is convinced that she has to thank the angels for all this. She still uses the Angel Aura Essences for energetic cleansing and boundary.

When Claudia's father-in-law was dying, his wife and children visited him every day. On the third day, Claudia got an instruction from the angelic world to support him. Her mother-in-law was sceptical towards angels. So Claudia brought Angel Aura Essences, Angel Essences and Angel Combi Oils into the hospital. Her father-in-law knew about it and agreed. But Claudia did not tell her mother-in-law. Claudia gave her husband the remedies who applied them on his father. Some hours later he could die peacefully. Claudia and her husband were happy despite all the sorrow. They had been able to help and support him through the angels.

Before Robert and Angelika M. from Germany, had started their practice and seminar rooms, they got to know Ingrid Auer personally. They tell us that they are working with angel symbols very successfully. Here is one example:

A client in her thirties, married with two small children, suffered from meningitis which was not diagnosed in time. She then had a stroke, fell into a coma and went blind. When she regained consciousness, she was impassive, insensitive and apathetic. Her husband said that she had lost her late husband through cancer. Her former mother-in-law, a Sicilian, who wanted to look after her son at home in Italy, had cursed her after his death. "You should not be able to walk and see any more", were her very words.

Angelika made an "Archangel Michael" meditation together with her client. The purpose was to cut the energetic connection of the curse. She also prayed to the Archangel every evening. Already after her second visit, Angelika noticed that her client felt better. She continued her work for weeks, including other Archangels in their meditations. As the client had taken medication for years, Angelika cleansed her aura and chakras with the Angel Aura Essences. In the course of time the woman became capable of drawing her own angel card for the meditations. Now the woman can walk again, almost without help, and climb steps. Her hormone status has normalized and fortunately she can see again! Her eye specialist has no explanation and talks about a miracle. Angelika and her client are very happy about this.

Silvia R. from Austria wrote about her own experience and one incident with her cousin:

She had to undergo an operation on her jaw. This made her nervous and anxious. Before the operation, she had massaged herself with the Angel Combi Oil no. 32 "Sorihael" which Ingrid Auer had recommended. She perfectly survived both the operation and the anaesthetics. Although the operation lasted for five hours, she woke up with a clear conscience and longing for a portion of yoghurt after half an hour. She could go home after one week and recovered quickly. There was no scar left.

Some additional information: Sylvia used the recommended Angel Combi Oil no. 32 "Sorihael" directly after the operation. The check-up gave her a moment of shock. On the x-ray the doctors detected a suspicious shadow. They feared the transplanted part of the bone could come off the jaw-bone. The following computer tomography , however, did not show any negative results: everything seemed perfect. Sylvia thought the Angel Combi Oil might have protected against the x-rays. Anyway, she is healthy now.

When Sylvia's cousin was pregnant in the eighth month, she had

to go to hospital because she suffered from vaginal bleeding. Her cousin asked Sylvia to lay a protection circle with Angel Symbol cards. Much to the surprise of the doctors the bleeding immediately stopped. Some time later, the gynaecologist said that the baby was in such an awkward position, that he recommended a caesarean.

She was in the same situation two years ago when she gave birth to her first child. Sylvia lay a protection circle with Angel Symbols for her cousin then. The child turned again and could have a normal and quick birth. Sylvia recommended the Angel Combi Oil "Vaniel" for self-massage. Also the second birth was without problems for mother and child.

Irene S. from Switzerland works in an old people's home. She talks about two cases of experience with the Angel Symbols, especially the effects of the Angel-Protection-Circles:

It was extremely unusual that a woman came into the home after her 100th birthday. Although she was still quite sprightly and independent for her age, she could not manage to settle in. She got weaker from day to day, more and more confused, and started to cry for help during the night and later also during the day. It sometimes went on for hours, although she was looked after and visited by the nurses. Irene decided to lay a protection circle for her. She drew the following cards:

No. 49 "Archangel Metatron", no. 27 "Angel for Death and Rebirth", no. 38 "Angel for Release from Karma", no. 47 "Archangel Uriel", no. 48 "Archangel Zadkiel", no. 20 "Angel for Love and Relationships", no. 24 "Angel for Recurring Thoughts and Solutions", no. 6 "Angel for Change and Transformation".

The first night after the protection circle had been laid for her, the

old lady was relaxed and could sleep through the night. And the following days she seemed calmer and more relaxed.

One week later Irene drew another card for her: no. 03 "Angel for Peace and Light-Heartedness". She put a candle next to the card. One day later, during Irene's shift, the old lady died peacefully.

The second example: an 84-year-old lady had been living in the home for some time, because she felt weak and depressed. The weaker she got, the more depressed she became. She fell to the ground several times, fortunately without hurting herself. She often expressed a desire to die, although she did not give up taking her tablets. She said she wanted to go "at the push of a button".

Irene felt sorry for the old lady's miserable state and so she lay a protection circle with the following Angel Symbol cards: no. 48 "Archangel Zadkiel", no. 25 "Angel for Spiritual Strength and Tests", no. 22 "Angel for Resolution and Order", no. 8 "Angel for Direction and Aim", no. 46 "Archangel Raphael", no. 3 "Angel for Peace and Light-Heartedness", no. 47 "Archangel Uriel", no. 14 "Angel for Unconditional Love".

Due to her bad condition the lady was taken to hospital a few days later, where she did not get any special treatment. Also the medicaments stayed the same. After a week she returned to the old people's home and was still irritated, sensitive and full of self-pity.

During the next month her condition improved considerably. She got stronger and showed more interest in her environment and became more independent again. She kept going quite happily and death and dying were hardly ever mentioned again.

Irene B. gave us the following report about an experience with the Angel Symbol cards:

One night her daughter was struck by a terrible pain in her abdomen. This had happened before. Last time an ambulance had to take her to hospital where they did not really find anything. This time Irene tried the help of the angels. She lay the girl on the Symbol card "Archangel Raphael" and put the symbol "Archangel Michael" in her hand. Soon the pain got less and she did not need any further treatment.

Cäcilia F. from Switzerland described two examples from her practice, which could be solved easily in the end. Cäcilia mainly offers energy treatment and reflexology. Since she has known the tools from the angelic world, she always offers her clients the chance to draw an Angel Symbol card for the treatment.

Once a woman came to her practice complaining about an ingrowing toenail. First Cäcilia didn't know what to do. Eventually her intuition told her to put the Angel Combi Essence no. 01 "Loriel" on the toe. The toe became so insensitive to pain, that she could easily treat the ingrowing nail.

Cäcilia's second report was about a kindergarten child who was about to start school. The problem was that it was still a bedwetter. She gave the mother the Angel Combi Oil no. 03 "Hariel" and recommended her to massage a few drops on the soles of the child's feet and the solar plexus. After two months the awkward bed-wetting was over.

Christine K. is a kindergarten teacher. Her new-born daughter was suffering from frequent stomach aches. She woke up during the night and could hardly get to sleep again. Christine attended one of Ingrid Auer's seminars and she recommended her to use an Angel Combi Oil. She should massage the girl's stomach softly for six weeks. Before going to bed, she sprayed her daughter with the Angel Aura Essence "Norael". There was an amazing improvement and the child could get to sleep well. Now the child chooses the Angel Aura Essences and Children's Angel Symbols for herself before she goes to bed.

Sometimes the girl gets rid of her aggressions by screaming, pinching and scratching. Then the Angel Aura Essence "Norael" is not good enough and Christine has to lay a protection circle with Angel Symbol cards. Whenever Christine feels tension between her and her husband, she puts a Children's Angel Symbol on a transmission card and sprays the Angel Aura Essence "Archangel Chamuel" in the room. It helps!

After her maternity leave Christine returned to her work in the kindergarten. Before she started, she laid protection circles with the Angel Symbols for her colleagues, her head, for the children, the parents and even for the rooms. This seemed to help. The atmosphere is clearer and more relaxed than in former times. More and more, her colleagues accept her energy work. She gave her head Angel Symbol cards and an Angel Aura Essence before she had to talk to the authorities. After the successful talk, her head confirmed that she entered the discussion very relaxed, calm and full of energy.

Claudia V. from the Netherlands was happy about the meditation CD with Archangel Gabriel and sent us the following amazing report:

At a check-up in the hospital her stepfather was diagnosed with a tumour on his kidney. One kidney had to be removed. During the operation internal bleeding win the stomach started which could not be stopped. The situation got drastically worse and the relatives were prepared to think of the worst.

In her desperation Claudia asked the Archangels Gabriel, Raphael and Uriel for help and sprayed their Angel Aura Essences in the ward. In the meantime the doctor talked to the other relations to prepare them for the imminent death of the patient. They performed an emergency operation as a last attempt to save his life. When the doctor came back after a few hours, he said that Claudia's stepfather had survived the operation and even the bleeding could be stopped.

The patient was in intensive care for some days. Claudia visited him every day and worked with these three essences. The anaesthetist, who happened to see her with the sprays, said it was okay, because in this situation everything could be of use. During these days, Claudia said that she had seen the appearance of an angel by her stepfather's bed.

After some time her stepfather's condition improved and he was released from hospital, 12 kilograms lighter, but in good condition.

A final thought

When I got the message from the angels in 1998, that I should receive Angel Symbols from the spiritual world and bring them to the people, I was not aware of the significance of this message.

Reading the present interviews and progress reports about ten years later, I am grateful and speechless at the same time. They are an amalgam of everything friends, therapists, doctors, healing practitioners, energy practitioners and numerous users have told me about the efficiency and application possibilities of these tools.

As I have received the symbols and essences without "instructions", various efficient application methods evolved through daily use and enthusiasm for experimentation by some users.

The wonderful thing about the work with the symbols, essences and oils is that they can be used completely intuitively and without any instructions. There are no rules, only a few tips that you should follow. The angel tools also emphasize the efficiency of other alternative methods of treatment. Therefore they make work for many practitioners easier.

Children particularly like to "work" with the symbols and the Angel Aura Essences. They feel very clearly what energy they are lacking, at the moment, and what angel could support them at this particular time. They sometimes amaze their parents by picking the right card for them. When they read in the book afterwards, they can see their blockages through the symbols.

Primarily the application of the Angel Symbols and the appropriate

essences and oils an be structured in three main areas:

- personal development and counselling (Angel Symbols 1–49)
- physical energy treatment (Angel Combi Symbols)
- spiritual development (Angel Transformation Symbols, Master and Archangel Symbols)

As the positive effects can be seen most clearly on the physical level, the reports concentrate on the area of physical energy treatment. Mental, energetic, biochemical or karmic blockages or weaknesses can be treated just as effectively with the help of the tools from the angelic world. They cannot be proved as easily, as the changes and successes are more noticeable on a subjective base.

In case you are wondering why you can hardly read anything about the application of the Transformation-Symbols or Master-Essences in the progress reports, you will find an easy explanation. These energies are quite "new" and only a few people have integrated them in their daily lives or their energetic work.

If symbols, essences or oils do not show any effects, there might be different reasons:

- Sometimes the user is (consciously or unconsciously) not ready for a change and blocks the angel energies.
- You have to go through and experience a certain process of learning, so that you can make certain corrections and changes. In this case the angels must not remove this lesson.
- It was the wrong choice of angelic tool. The real topic has not been recognized or you are working on a marginal problem.
- It takes a certain length of time to deal with the problem,
 but the client is impatient and quits the application of the

- angelic tools too soon.
- Or: a person's soul decides not to accept angel energies.
 This happens on a higher level and cannot be influenced by a person consciously.

To avoid misunderstandings or wrong expectations, it is essential to understand the effectiveness of the angelic tools. The tools described in this book are no magic wand, but they provide a guide for self-help, for self-responsible development and for going on the individual, spiritual path of development. They are no substitute for medicaments, fro therapeutic or medical treatment, or nutritional supplement. Angel Essences and oils neither contain the energies of blossoms, herbs, minerals or colours, but pure cosmic energies, which are provided by the spiritual world.

There are no technical and scientific appliances that can to some extent show and prove the efficiency of the angelic tools. The angels tell me that we are able to understand about 15% of the overall effect on our earthly level. Knowing that these energies come from the fourth, fifth and sixth dimension, it is understandable that we people, living on the third level, can only realize a limited part of these energies.

When I was asked for my mission, I was told that "...one day the books and the essences will spread around the world...". At the beginning I didn't take this message seriously, put it at the back of my mind and forgot it during the following years. But recently I was asked by the spiritual world to go more public and across the borders. The angelic tools should not only be limited to a circle of "insiders", but to everybody. Even people who don't know what to think of angels or Ascended Masters yet. We should not exclude people only because they are not spiritually open, but offer the help of the spiritual world to anybody.

This takes courage, because spiritual work is not always seen as what it is. It takes a lot of people to support me, so that I am able to fully carry out my mission. I can gratefully say that whenever a further step has to be done, the angels send me people to support me.

"What is essential is invisible to the eye", the Little Prince said in Antoine de Saint-Exupéry's work. There isn't anything further to be added.

Wishing you gratitude and joy in experimenting and "playing" with the new angel energies – from the bottom of my heart,

Ingrid Auer

Glossary

"Energized Angel Symbols 1-49"

This book is the basic work and, at the same time a first step into the world of the Angel Symbols by Ingrid Auer. It can be a support and help for the reader's personal development and mastering every-day problems. It provides a natural and unbiased access to the angelic world. Also people in health care professions have realized the value of this book. The Symbol Cards that go with the book, are energized by the angelic world. They can be used for protection circles, cutting circles and raising the energy of water, food, minerals and so on.

Templates for protection circles, cutting circles and other card spread templates are available as download under: www.ingridauer.us/services/free-downloads/

Angel Symbols

These symbols support the access to the spiritual world. They can help loosening blockages in the subtle body, and energizing and activating chakras. The raise the subtle energy frequency and delete burdening energies from the aura, chakras and the morphogenetic field. Furthermore they activate the body of light, and support and accompany during the transformation process.

Angel symbols are energized by the angelic world through Ingrid Auer. They are energetically protected, sealed, and therefore cannot take on external energies. The original symbols are handmade on transparency film; all the symbols are also available in cardboard. The symbols come with the books by Ingrid Auer, but

can also be obtained separately. They are also available in a heart shape.

Angel Essences

Angel Essences contain the same subtle energies as the Angel Symbols. They are made of a water-alcohol-mixture. Like the Angel Symbols, they are energetically sealed and therefore can be used by more than one person. You apply the essences by dropping them on different parts of the body, e.g. oral mucosa, chakras, navel, pulse, etc. or by adding them to the bath water or a scented lamp. Angel Essences are not remedies in the medical sense, but energetic tools for the subtle body and the aura.

Angel Aura Essences

The Angel Aura Essences contain, water and essential oils. These essences are called "Angel Sprays" by many users, but they are primarily meant to energize and cleanse the aura and chakras. It extends their field of application that they can also be used to energize and cleanse properties, rooms, clothes, minerals, etc.

Personal Symbols

These symbols are transmitted through Ingrid Auer from the angelic world for anybody who desires this. They are made individually, supervised by the person's Higher Self. All this is needed is the person's name and date of birth. By request the personal symbols are also made and energized as pendants.

Angel Combi Symbols

Angel Combi Symbols sets contain 7 to 15 symbols each. They are put together for certain fields of application and are either handmade on transparency film, or cardboard. Angel Combi Symbols are perfectly suitable for protection circles and cutting circles, but also for any kind of physical energy treatment, such as massages, kinesiology, the Grinberg method, rebirthing, Cranio Fluid Dynamics, reflexology, etc. Users report that energetic sessions become easier and more efficient, as the Angel Combi Symbols loosen blockages in the subtle body, support cleansing processes, energize chakras, aura and meridians, transform karmic blockages and delete external energies.

Angel Combi Oils and Angel Combi Essences

These oils and essences contain the same energies as the Angel Combi Symbols and are also energetically sealed. Angel Combi Oils are applied and softly massaged on certain parts of the body, meridians, reflexology zones or chakras. The Angel Combi Essences are used like the Angel Essences 1–49. These oils are used for energy treatment, massages, baby massages and during pregnancy, birth, infancy and caring for the sick and dying.

Angel Symbols for Children

These Angel Symbols have been made for children, as well as work with the inner child. They show unconscious problems of the present, or the past and help to deal with them. They offer energetic guidance and protection for everyday life. At the same time they support and strengthen the connection to the angelic world. On request these symbols are available hand-made on transparency film, or in heart-shaped cards.

Transformation-Symbols

There are 21 specially energized Angel Symbols which offer specific help and support in the personal and energetic transformation process. The Transformation-Symbols often hint at deep, mainly undiscovered blockages and behaviour patterns. At the same time, they have a strong effect on spiritual awareness. They can be perfectly combined with the Angel Symbols 1- 49, the Angel Combi Symbols, the Angel Symbols for Children and the Master and Archangel Symbols. Like all the other symbols, they are energized and sealed by the angelic world through Ingrid Auer. The symbols go with corresponding Angel Transformation Essences.

Master and Archangel Symbols

There are hardly any progress reports on the Master-Symbols. They are mainly used for one's own spiritual development, for the path to personal mastery, and the support of the world-wide transformation process. They are closely connected with the Angel Transformation Symbols. Some symbols go with the appropriate Master-Aura-Essences and ArchAngel Aura Essences. They are particularly effective in combination with the Angel Transformation Symbols and Transformation-Essences.

Angel Symbol Protection circles and Cutting circles

With the help of various Angel Symbols you can lay protection and cutting circles. They can cause an energetic support, stabilizing, or change of a certain person or a situation, triggered off and supported by the spiritual world. Find more details and instructions on how to use these symbol circles in Ingrid Auer's "Practical handbook of the Angel Symbols and Angel Combi Symbols".

Transmission Card

Angel energies from the Angel Symbols and Angel Essences are transmitted over distances with the help of a transmission card. You find them pictured in some of Ingrid Auer's books. The homepage www.ingridauer.us provides a free download.

Ampoules for energy practitioners

These ampoules are used in different ways: with the organ radiator, for energetic transmission of the angel energies, in biofeedback appliances or directly on to the body during therapeutic treatment. Ampoules are available for all the Angel and Master-Symbols mentioned above. They have also proved to be effective at interference suppression of water lines and energetic interfering fields.

About the authors



© Ute Ville

Ingrid AUER

is in close contact with the spiritual world. She has been writing spiritual books, which has received as a medium, since 1998. At the centre of her work are energized symbols and essences, which are not only used by private individuals, but also doctors, healing practitioners, energy practitioners, and teachers, with great success. They have also proved to work well in the areas of pregnancy, birth in caring for children (www.spiritualedu.com), during care for the terminally-ill, and those who are grieving. She founded, and runs, the company 'Lichtpunkt' (www.ingridauer.com), and 'Ekonja-publishing'. She is currently planning to make her work more well-known in the U.S.A. For some years now, Ingrid Auer has been in close contact with the Ascended Master, Mary Magdalene. She publishes her messages which she receives medially. She has been offering spiritual journeys in the south of France since 2013 (www.marymagdalene.at). Ingrid Auer has homes in Vienna and Mallorca.

Gerd SCHWANK



worked in economy, after studying law. For some years, he worked at a large bank, was then personnel manager in two companies, before becoming manager of an economic organisation. For many years his thinking was rational and intellectual and therefore he was not open for spiritual topics. Only after a tragic family event he opened up for the "connections between heaven and earth", which cannot be explained rationally.

Visit us online & learn more:

INGRIDAUER.US

BASIC INFORMATION TESTIMONIALS EVENTS E-ACADEMY NEWSLETTER ... AND MORE

WWW.FACEBOOK.COM/GROUPS/2066381716915021

E f IIII S

BLOGS FACEBOOK YOUTUBE ... AND MORE

USA

INGRID AUER LLC

Westlake Village CA 91362 USA

Sigrid Glaser

e office@ingridauer.com

INTERNATIONAL

LICHTPUNKT & EKONJA-VERLAG

Ingrid Auer GmbH

Wiener Straße 49 A-3300 Amstetten AUSTRIA

t +43 7472 691 72-0

e info@IngridAuer.com